

DOCUMENT No. 323

OCTOBER 1948

---

---

THE MARITIME LAW ASSOCIATION

OF THE

UNITED STATES

—  
FOUNDED 1899  
—

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND BY-LAWS

OFFICERS AND FORMER OFFICERS

LIST OF MEMBERS

—  
1948  
—  

---

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Organization .....	1
Articles of Association and By-Laws.....	2
Officers for year 1948-49.....	6
Officers of the Association since its organization.....	7
Associate Members.....	11
Honorary Members.....	17
Law Library List.....	17
Active Members arranged alphabetically.....	19
Active Members arranged geographically.....	65

## ORGANIZATION

A meeting was held at the Association of the Bar of the City of New York on June 21, 1899, for the purpose of organizing a Maritime Law Association.

Mr. Robert Dewey Benedict was elected President.

Messrs. Harrington Putnam, Frederick Dodge and Henry Galbraith Ward were appointed Executive Committee, together with the President *virtute officii*. Mr. Ward was chosen Secretary.

The meeting adopted as the name of the Association THE MARITIME LAW ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES.

The members of the Executive Committee were directed to report at the next meeting a statement of the objects of the Association and such rules for its government as they might think convenient.

Hon. Joseph H. Choate and Mr. Wilhelmus Mynderse were appointed delegates, to represent the Association at the meeting of the International Maritime Committee held at Fishmongers' Hall, London, July 13, 14 and 15, 1899.

An adjourned meeting of the Association, held June 28, 1899, at 3 P. M., adopted By-Laws and completed the organization, with 106 members.

At a meeting on December 13, 1935, the present Articles of Association and By-Laws, prepared by the following committee, J. Frank Staley, George M. Lanning, George H. Terriberry, Ira A. Lillick, Lawrence Bogle, Chauncey I. Clark, T. Catesby Jones, Cletus Keating, were adopted.

The Association is the American organization contributing to the work of the International Maritime Committee (Comité International Maritime), founded in 1896.

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND BY-LAWS****Adopted December 13, 1935**

---

**NAME.**

1. The name of the Association shall be **THE MARITIME LAW ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES.**

**OBJECTS.**

2. The objects of the Association shall be to advance reforms in the Maritime Law of the United States, to facilitate justice in its administration, to furnish a forum for the discussion and consideration of problems affecting the Maritime Law and its administration, and to act with foreign and other associations in efforts to bring about a greater harmony in the Shipping Laws, regulations and practices of different nations.

**MEMBERSHIP.**

3. Any citizen of the United States who is interested in the objects of the Association as stated in Article 2 shall be eligible for membership. No applicant who is not a member of the Bar shall be elected to active membership at any time when the non-lawyer members exceed 10% of the total membership of the Association. Members shall be elected by the Executive Committee or elected by the Association after being reported or recommended as candidates by the Executive Committee. (Amended May 4, 1945 and May 2, 1947.)

There shall be two classes of regular membership: active and associate.

The annual dues of active members shall be \$5.00, payable May 1st of each year.

Associate members shall pay no dues and shall not have the privilege of voting.

Any member who shall be in arrears for one year or more may be dropped from membership by the Executive Committee. (Amended May 7, 1943 and May 2, 1947.)

**HONORARY MEMBERS.**

4. The Executive Committee may elect any person who has rendered distinguished service in the advancement of the Maritime Law or its administration, as an Honorary Member. Honorary Members shall pay no dues and shall have no vote.

## OFFICERS.

5. Officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. They shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Association to serve for one year and until their successors have been elected. (Amended May 4, 1945.)

## DUTIES OF OFFICERS.

6. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and as such, subject to the Articles of Association and By-Laws, shall generally supervise its affairs, and at the annual meetings shall report as to its condition, activities and progress. He shall have power to call special meetings of the Association and of the Executive Committee.

The President, with the advice and approval of the Executive Committee, may authorize any committee or individual to represent the Association before any Congressional or State Legislative Committee, or before any Federal or State Department, Commission or Board, and present the views of the Association; provided, however, that, if the members of the Executive Committee present or voting at a meeting called to consider the views of the Association after due notice of the object of such meeting are not in unanimous agreement as to such views, then in that event no committee or member of the Association shall be authorized to represent the Association unless and until the subject matter shall have been considered at a meeting of the Association, after due notice, and the Association, by a two-thirds vote of those present, shall have given the required authority.

The President shall have authority to appoint such committees as he may deem necessary to facilitate the business of the Association. Such committees shall report in writing to the President and their terms of office shall expire at the next annual meeting of the Association following their appointment. The President shall be an *ex officio* member of all committees. (Amended May 4, 1945 and May 3, 1946.)

7. The Vice-President shall perform such duties as may be assigned to him by the President or by the Executive Committee within the terms of the Articles of Association and By-Laws, and shall discharge the duties of the President whenever, in the discretion of the Executive Committee, the disability or absence of the President makes such designation advisable.

8. The Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of all meetings of the Association and of all other matters of which a record shall be ordered by the Association.

He shall notify the officers and all members of Committees of their election or appointment, shall issue notices of all meetings, and,

in case of special meetings, shall add a brief notice of the object of the call.

He shall be the keeper of the seal of the Association.

He shall keep at all times a complete roll of the members and shall notify new members of their election.

He shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Executive Committee.

8. The Treasurer shall on the order of the Executive Committee, collect and disburse all funds of the Association and shall keep regular accounts in books belonging to the Association.

At the annual meeting of the Association and at meetings of the Executive Committee he shall report in writing the balance of money on hand and any existing appropriations which may affect the same.

He shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Executive Committee. (Amended May 4, 1945.)

#### ANNUAL MEETING.

9. The annual meeting of the Association shall be held on the first Friday of May in each year, unless the President, with the concurrence of the Executive Committee, shall fix some other date.

Thirty-five active members present in person shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Association.

#### EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.

10. There shall be an Executive Committee, to consist of nine elected members, divided into three classes, and the President, the Vice-President, the Secretary and the Treasurer, who shall be *ex officio* members thereof. (Amended May 4, 1945.)

At the next annual meeting of the Association, three members of the Executive Committee shall be elected for a term of one year, three members for a term of two years, and three members for a term of three years, and thereafter three members of the Executive Committee shall be elected at each annual election for a term of three years, and also such additional members, if any, as may be necessary to fill vacancies, to hold office during the remainder of the terms of the members whose places they fill.

The Executive Committee shall hold at least four meetings in each year and shall make an annual report to the Association of their activities during the year.

Five members voting either in person or by mail or telegraph shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Executive Committee.

Members of the Executive Committee absent from New York may vote on any matter coming before said committee by mail or telegraph.

All appropriations of funds of the Association must be made or approved by the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee shall consider from time to time, either on their own motion or at the suggestion of any member in writing, such matters affecting the objects of the Association as in the judgment of the Committee should be the subject of investigation, consideration, discussion and action. The President is authorized and directed to appoint committees whose terms of office shall expire at the next annual meeting of the Association following their appointment to take up such subjects as may be deemed desirable by the Executive Committee. (Amended May 3, 1946.)

The Executive Committee shall study ways and means, and take such measures as it may deem appropriate, to increase the membership and general usefulness of the Association.

11. Vacancies in all elective offices, with the exception of the office of President, shall be filled by the members of the Executive Committee, such appointed incumbents to hold office until the next annual meeting.

#### AMENDMENTS.

12. These Articles and By-Laws may be amended by vote of two-thirds of the members present at any meeting of the Association, provided, however, that notice of any proposed amendment, together with its text, is submitted to the Executive Committee ten days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered. The Executive Committee shall make a recommendation to the Association regarding the advisability of adopting any proposed amendment.

**OFFICERS**  
**OF**  
**THE MARITIME LAW ASSOCIATION**  
**OF THE UNITED STATES**  
**1948-1949**

---

*President:* GEORGE DEFOREST LORD  
 25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

*Vice-President:* CARL V. ESSERY  
 Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.

*Secretary:* JOHN W. R. ZISGEN  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

*Treasurer:* THOMAS H. MIDDLETON  
 96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.

*Executive Committee:*

(Term expiring 1949)

RAY ROOD ALLEN	(New York)
L. DEGROVE POTTER	(New York)
WARNER PYNE	(New York)

(Term expiring 1950)

THEODORE R. DANKMEYER	(Baltimore)
E. CURTIS ROUSE	(New York)
CARL G. STEARNS	(Houston)

(Term expiring 1951)

CHARLES S. HAIGHT	(New York)
WILLIAM E. COLLINS	(New York)
JOSEPH J. GEARY	(San Francisco)



## OFFICERS

OF

### THE MARITIME LAW ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES

Since Its Organization

---

#### *Presidents*

ROBERT DEWEY BENEDICT.....	1899-1907
ADDISON BROWN .....	1907-1911
HARRINGTON PUTNAM .....	1911-1912
GEORGE CHANDLER HOLT.....	1912-1916
E. HENRY LACOMBE.....	1916-1917
HENRY GALBRAITH WARD.....	1917-1919
CHARLES MERRILL HOUGH .....	1919-1927
AUGUSTUS NOBLE HAND.....	1927-1930
VANVECHTEN VEEDER .....	1930-1936
D. ROGER ENGLAR.....	1936-1938
CHARLES R. HICKOX .....	1938-1940
ROSCOE H. HUPPER.....	1940-1942
JOHN W. GRIFFIN.....	1942-1944
GEO. WHITEFIELD BETTS, JR.....	1944-1946
JOHN C. PRIZER.....	1946-1948
GEORGE DEFORREST LORD .....	1948-

#### *Vice-Presidents*

STUART S. JANNEY.....	1936-1938
FARNHAM P. GRIFFITHS.....	1938-1940
LAWRENCE BOGLE .....	1940-1941
ROBERT W. WILLIAMS.....	1941-1943
JOSEPH M. RAULT.....	1943-1945
ARCHIE M. STEVENSON.....	1945-1947
CARL V. ESSERY.....	1947-

#### *Secretaries and Treasurers*

HENRY GALBRAITH WARD.....	1899-1902
LAWRENCE KNEELAND .....	1902-1906
A. GORDON MURRAY.....	1906-1907
EDWARD GRENVILLE BENEDICT.....	1907-1915
A. GORDON MURRAY.....	1915-1922
HAROLD S. DEMING .....	1922-1930
ARNOLD WHITMAN KNAUTH.....	1930-1937
GEORGE C. SPRAGUE.....	1937-1941
P. J. R. McENTEGART.....	1941-1945

*Secretary*

P. J. R. McENTEGART.....	1945-1947
JOHN W. R. ZISGEN.....	1947-

*Treasurer*

THOMAS H. MIDDLETON.....	1945-
--------------------------	-------

*Executive Committee*

HARRINGTON PUTNAM.....	1899-1911
FREDERICK DODGE.....	1899-1911
HENRY GALBRAITH WARD.....	1899-1902
ADDISON BROWN.....	1902-1907
EVERETT P. WHEELER.....	1907-1918
LAWRENCE KNEELAND.....	1911-1916
FITZ-HENRY SMITH, JR.....	1911-1919; 1924-1925; 1932-1933
ROBERT M. HUGHES.....	1916-1918
GEORGE B. OGDEN.....	1916-1918; 1927-1928
D. ROGER ENGLAR.....	1916-1920; 1923-1924; 1926-1928; 1929-1930
FLOYD HUGHES.....	1918-1923
GEORGE DENEGRE.....	1918-1919
CHARLES C. BURLINGHAM.....	1918-1920
H. ALAN DAWSON.....	1918-1920; 1922-1923; 1924-1925
HARVEY D. GOULDER.....	1918-1920
IRA A. CAMPBELL.....	1918-1922; 1923-1924; 1929-1931; 1943-1946
GEORGE H. TERRIBERRY.....	1919-1920; 1922-1923; 1935-1936
EDWARD E. BLODGETT.....	1919-1923
JOHN W. GRIFFIN.....	1920-1922; 1923-1924; 1936-1938
ALFRED HUGER.....	1920-1922
WILLIAM J. CONLEN.....	1920-1922; 1923-1924; 1926-1927
OSCAR R. HOUSTON.....	1920-1922; 1930-1931; 1933-1934; 1944-1947
RUSSELL H. LOINES.....	1920-1923
CHARLES R. HICKOX.....	1922-1923; 1933-1934
MARK W. MACLAY.....	1922-1923; 1930-1931; 1936-1937
ARCHIBALD G. THACHER.....	1922-1923; 1929-1930
GEO. WHITEFIELD BETTS, JR.....	1923-1924; 1927-1928
HENRY H. LITTLE.....	1923-1924; 1927-1928
JAMES K. SYMMERS.....	1923-1924; 1927-1928
GEORGE W. P. WHIP.....	1923-1924
STUART S. JANNEY.....	1924-1926; 1928-1929; 1932-1933
EDWARD R. BAIRD.....	1924-1926; 1937-1940
ROSCOE H. HUPPER.....	1924-1926; 1927-1930; 1934-1935; 1937-1940
JOHN M. WOOLSEY.....	1924-1926
T. CATESBY JONES.....	1924-1926; 1935-1936
RUSSELL T. MOUNT.....	1924-1926; 1934-1935; 1939-1942
ERNEST W. CONGDON.....	1925-1926
ALBERT T. GOULD.....	1925-1928; 1930-1931; 1934-1935
MORRIS DOUW FERRIS.....	1926-1927; 1933-1934; 1939-1942

CLETUS KEATING .....	1926-1927; 1935-1936
GEORGE DEFOREST LORD.....	1926-1927; 1929-1930; 1936-1937
JOHN H. SKEEN.....	1926-1927
HORACE R. STILLMAN .....	1926-1927
EMORY H. NILES.....	1927-1928
JOSEPH W. HENDERSON.....	1928-1929; 1936-1938; 1939-1942
WILLIAM H. McGRANN.....	1928-1929
GEORGE C. SPRAGUE.....	1928-1929; 1942-1945
EARLE FARWELL .....	1928-1929; 1937-1940
ARTHUR M. BOAL.....	1928-1929
E. CURTIS ROUSE.....	1928-1929; 1947-
WILLIAM N. DAVEY.....	1929-1931
CHARLES F. DUTCH.....	1928-1930
CHARLES S. HAIGHT, SR.....	1929-1930
HAROLD S. DEMING.....	1930-1931; 1938-1941
CHAUNCEY I. CLARK.....	1930-1931; 1935-1936
ROBERT W. WILLIAMS.....	1930-1931
GEORGE S. BRENGLE.....	1931-1932
ROBERT S. ERSKINE.....	1931-1932
FARNHAM P. GRIFFITHS.....	1931-1932; 1933-1934; 1936-1937
FOYE M. MURPHY.....	1931-1932
FRANK B. OBER.....	1931-1932
WHARTON POOR .....	1931-1932; 1941-1944
JOHN C. PRIZER.....	1931-1932
CHARLES E. WYTHE.....	1931-1932
JOHN W. CRANDALL.....	1932-1933; 1942-1948
IRA S. LILLICK.....	1932-1933; 1935-1936
LEONARD J. MATTESON.....	1932-1933; 1940-1943
L. DE GROVE POTTER.....	1932-1933; 1946-
JOSEPH M. RAULT.....	1932-1933; 1938-1941
J. FRANK STALEY.....	1932-1936
ALEXANDER R. LAWTON, JR.....	1933-1934
EDWIN C. HOLLINS.....	1933-1934
ARTHUR J. SANTRY.....	1933-1934
ALLAN B. A. BRADLEY.....	1934-1935; 1940-1943
HENRY P. DART, JR.....	1934-1935
BRADEN VANDEVENTER .....	1935-1936
LANE SUMMERS .....	1935-1936
LAWRENCE BOGLE .....	1935-1936
GEORGE M. LANNING.....	1935-1936
JAMES HENRY BRUNS.....	1936-1938
CHARLES S. BOLSTER.....	1936-1939
JOHN L. GALEY.....	1936-1939
CLEMENT C. RINEHART.....	1936-1939
CARL V. ESSERY.....	1938-1941
SEYMOUR P. EDGERTON.....	1940-1943
ALEXIS T. GRESHAM .....	1941-1943
ROY W. CHAMBERLAIN.....	1941-1944
CHALMERS G. GRAHAM.....	1942-1948

THOMAS C. BURKE.....	1943-1946
ANTHONY V. LYNCH, JR.....	1943-1946
LESLIE C. KRUSEN.....	1944-1947
WILLIAM RADNER.....	1944-1947
THOMAS H. WALSH.....	1945-1948
RAY ROOD ALLEN.....	1946-
WARNER PYNE.....	1946-
THEODORE R. DANKMEYER.....	1947-
CARL G. STEARNS.....	1947-
WILLIAM E. COLLINS.....	1948-
JOSEPH J. GEARY.....	1948-
CHARLES S. HAIGHT.....	1948-

## ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

(Date in parenthesis following name is year  
of election of member.)

- HON. MATTHEW T. ABRUZZO (1936)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
 Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. JOHN BIGGS, JR. (1941)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Third Circuit  
 U. S. Court House, Philadelphia 7, Pa.
- HON. LLOYD L. BLACK (1948)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. Court House, Western District of Washington  
 Seattle 11, Wash.
- HON. WILLIAM BONDY (1923)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. WAYNE G. BORAH (1929)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of Louisiana  
 U. S. Post Office Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- HON. JOHN C. BOWEN (1934)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Western District of Washington  
 U. S. Court House, Seattle 11, Wash.
- HON. JASPER YEATES BRINTON (1922)  
 President, Cour d'Appel Mixte  
 Alexandria, Egypt
- HON. MORTIMER W. BYERS (1930)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
 Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. FRANCIS G. CAFFEY (1929)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. HARRIE B. CHASE (1929)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.

- HON. W. CALVIN CHESNUT (1931)  
 United States District Judge  
 534 Post Office Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- HON. JOHN W. CLANCY (1937)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. CHARLES E. CLARK (1939)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
 309 Post Office Building, New Haven 6, Conn.
- HON. WILLIAM CLARK (1942)  
 Princeton, N. J.
- HON. SAMUEL C. COLEMAN (1938)  
 Justice of the City Court of the City of New York  
 Old County Court House, City Hall Park, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. WILLIAM C. COLEMAN (1927)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, District of Maryland  
 Post Office Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- HON. EDWARD A. CONGER (1939)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. ALFRED C. COXE (1929)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. HAROLD J. CRAWFORD (1926)  
 Chambers, Municipal Court of the City of New York  
 1015 - 49th Avenue, Long Island City 1, N. Y.
- HON. WILLIAM DENMAN (1918)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit  
 San Francisco 3, Calif.
- HON. ARMISTEAD M. DOBIE (1943)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit  
 Charlottesville, Va.
- HON. JOHN W. EGGLESTON (1921) (transfer 1935)  
 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia  
 301 City Hall Building, Norfolk 10, Va.

- HON. GUY L. FAKE (1946)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, District of New Jersey  
Federal Square, Newark 1, N. J.
- HON. FRANCIS J. W. FORD (1941)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, District of Massachusetts  
Federal Building, Boston 9, Mass.
- HON. PHILIP FORMAN (1946)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, District of New Jersey  
Trenton 5, N. J.
- HON. JEROME N. FRANK (1941)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. CLARENCE G. GALSTON (1929)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. HENRY W. GODDARD (1921)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. HERBERT F. GOODRICH (1942)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Third Circuit  
U. S. Court House, Philadelphia 7, Pa.
- HON. D. LAWRENCE GRONER (1927)  
Chief Justice (Retired)  
U. S. Court of Appeals  
Court of Appeals Building, Washington, D. C.
- HON. AUGUSTUS N. HAND (1914)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. LEARNED HAND (1914)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.

- HON. JOHN W. HOLLAND (1941)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of Florida  
 U. S. Post Office Building, Miami 2, Fla.
- HON. GEORGE MURRAY HULBERT (1934)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. ROBERT A. INCH (1923)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
 Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. CHARLES ALVIN JONES (1942)  
 Supreme Court of Pennsylvania  
 Philadelphia 7, Pa.
- HON. HAROLD M. KENNEDY (1945)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
 Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. THOMAS M. KENNERLY (1932)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of Texas  
 Houston 2, Texas
- HON. JOHN KNIGHT (1931)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Western District of New York  
 U. S. Post Office Building, Buffalo 2, N. Y.
- HON. JOHN C. KNOX (1918)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOSEPH LAROCQUE, Esq. (1903) (transfer 1945)  
 Larocque, Smith, Penick & Bayes  
 30 Broad St., New York 4, N. Y.
- HON. PAUL LEAHY (1945)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, District of Delaware  
 Wilmington 33, Del.
- HON. CHARLES H. LEAVY (1948)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. Court House, Western District of Washington  
 Tacoma 1, Wash.



- HON. VINCENT L. LEIBELL (1937)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. CALVERT MAGRUDER (1941)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, First Circuit  
Federal Building, Boston 9, Mass.
- HON. JOHN C. MAHONEY (1941)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, First Circuit  
311 Federal Building, Providence 3, R. I.
- HON. ALBERT B. MARIS (1942)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Third Circuit  
Room 2070, U. S. Court House, Philadelphia 7, Pa.
- HON. PAUL J. McCORMICK (1931)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, Southern District of California  
Los Angeles 12, Calif.
- HON. HUGH D. McLELLAN (1934)  
Herrick, Smith, Donald, Farley & Ketchum  
1 Federal St., Boston 9, Mass.
- HON. THOMAS F. MEANEY (1946)  
United States District Judge  
U. S. District Court, District of New Jersey  
Federal Square, Newark 1, N. J.
- HON. HAROLD R. MEDINA (1947)  
U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. EMORY H. NILES (1922)  
Supreme Bench of Baltimore City  
Baltimore, Md.
- HON. JOHN J. PARKER (1932)  
United States Circuit Judge  
U. S. Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit  
Charlotte 2, N. C.
- HON. ROBERT P. PATTERSON (1930)  
Patterson, Belknap & Webb  
1 Wall St., New York 5, N. Y.
- HON. JOHN A. PETERS (1929)  
Ellsworth, Maine

- HON. LEO F. RAYFIEL (1947)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Eastern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House & Post Office Building, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. SIMON H. RIFKIND (1942)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. SYLVESTER J. RYAN (1948)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, Southern District of New York  
 Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. WILLIAM F. SMITH (1946)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, District of New Jersey  
 New Brunswick, N. J.
- HON. MORRIS A. SOPER (1923)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit  
 Post Office Building, Baltimore, Md.
- HON. THOMAS W. SWAN (1927)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Second Circuit  
 U. S. Court House, Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HON. GEORGE C. SWEENEY (1939)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, District of Massachusetts  
 Federal Building, Boston 9, Mass.
- HON. CURTIS D. WILBUR (1929)  
 United States Circuit Judge (Retired)  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit  
 San Francisco 1, Calif.
- HON. PETER WOODBURY (1943)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, First Circuit  
 209 Federal Building, Manchester, N. H.
- HON. JOSEPH W. WOODROUGH (1919)  
 United States Circuit Judge  
 U. S. Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit  
 Post Office Building, Omaha 2, Nebr.
- HON. CHARLES E. WYZANSKI, JR. (1946)  
 United States District Judge  
 U. S. District Court, District of Massachusetts  
 Federal Building, Boston 9, Mass.

**HONORARY MEMBERS**

- NORMAN B. BEECHER, Esq. (1916)  
Clearwater, Fla.
- CHARLES C. BURLINGHAM (1899)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William St., New York 5, N. Y.
- HON. EDWIN L. GARVIN (1918)  
Borough Hall, Brooklyn 1, N. Y.
- HON. JOHN R. HAZEL (1927)  
Bean, Brooks, Buckley & Bean  
Liberty Bank Building, Buffalo, N. Y.
- HON. WILLIAM H. HUNT (1914)  
Preston Place  
University  
Charlottesville, Va.
- HENRY H. LITTLE, Esq. (1910)  
Riverton, Va.
- HON. THOMAS D. THACHER (1925)  
Court of Appeals of the State of New York  
Albany 1, N. Y.

**LAW LIBRARY LIST**

The following Law Libraries are on the mailing list:

- AMERICAN HISTORICAL ASSOCIATION  
Study Room 274, Library of Congress Annex  
Washington, D. C.
- ASSOCIATION OF THE BAR OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK  
42 W. 44th St., New York 18, N. Y.
- THE BALTIMORE BAR LIBRARY  
Court House, Baltimore, Md.
- COLUMBIA LAW SCHOOL LIBRARY  
116th St. and Amsterdam Ave., New York, N. Y.
- INTERNATIONAL LAW LIBRARIAN  
Columbia University Library  
Morningside Heights, New York, N. Y.
- THE LAW LIBRARIAN  
Library of Congress, Washington, D. C.
- CORNELL LAW LIBRARY  
Myron Taylor Hall, Ithaca, N. Y.

- JUDGE MANLEY O. HUDSON  
Harvard Law School  
Langdell Hall, Cambridge 38, Mass.
- A. C. PULLING, Director  
Langdell Hall Library, Law School of Harvard University  
Cambridge 38, Mass.
- UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND LAW LIBRARY  
Lombard and Greene Sts., Baltimore, Md.
- UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN LAW LIBRARY  
Ann Arbor, Mich.
- NEW YORK UNIVERSITY LIBRARY OF THE SCHOOL OF LAW  
Washington Square East, New York 3, N. Y.
- PAUL GAY, Assistant Librarian  
Biddle Law Library, University of Pennsylvania  
Philadelphia 4, Pa.
- PHILADELPHIA LAW LIBRARY  
City Hall, Room 600, Philadelphia, Pa.
- OFFICE OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT ATTORNEY  
United States Court House  
Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- LAW LIBRARY  
Clark Hall, University of Virginia  
Charlottesville, Va.
- MRS. MARIAN G. GALLAGHER, Law Librarian  
Washington University Library, Seattle 5, Wash.
- YALE LAW LIBRARY  
New Haven, Conn.

**ACTIVE MEMBERS****Alphabetical List**

(For geographical listing of Active Members see page 65)

**A**

- F. W. H. ADAMS (1945)**  
Dorsey & Adams  
44 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES L. ADAMS (1945)**  
Lillick, Geary, Olson, Adams & Charles  
311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- JOHN M. AHERNE (1930)**  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ROBERT A. AIKMAN, JR. (1947)**  
Dalzell Towing Co., Inc.  
21 West Street, New York 6, N. Y.
- HERVEY C. ALLEN, JR. (1948)**  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- RAY ROOD ALLEN (1917)**  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- REESE D. ALSOP (1935)**  
Hunt, Hill & Betts  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- BENJAMIN M. ALTSCHULER (1948)**  
39 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- JOHN AMBLER (1928)**  
Grosscup, Ambler & Stephan  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- WILLIAM F. ANDERSEN (1947)**  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- DONALD D. ANDERSON (1948)**  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROBERT H. ANDERSON (1945)**  
Loftin, Anderson, Scott, McCarthy & Preston  
Ingraham Building, Miami, Florida

- ROBERT J. ANDREWS (1945)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- SAMUEL D. ANTOPOL (1946)  
270 Broadway, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOSEPH ARCOLEO (1945)  
1711 Mahan Ave., Bronx 61, N. Y.
- ROBERT E. ARD (1934)  
Monroe & Ard  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- LT. COMDR. FREDERICK KARL ARZT (1947)  
U. S. C. G.  
2200 Coast Guard Headquarters  
1300 E Street, N.W., Washington 25, D. C.
- EDWARD ASH (1930)  
Alexander & Ash  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- IRWIN ASOFSKY (1947)  
Rolnick & Asofsky  
11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- HORACE T. ATKINS (1921)  
Atkins & Weymar  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- BERNARD DEWITT ATWOOD (1946)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- BRUNO J. AUGENTI (1944)  
Marine Index Bureau, Inc.  
60 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- MYRON H. AVERY (1927-1934; 1940)  
Admiralty Counsel  
Office of the Judge Advocate General  
Navy Department, Washington 25, D. C.

## B

- THEODORE L. BAILEY (1921)  
Bailey & Muller  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ALLAN A. BAILLIE (1939)  
Nelson, Healy, Baillie & Burke  
52 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

- EDWARD R. BAIRD (1941)  
 c/o Baird, White & Lanning  
 National Bank of Commerce Building  
 Norfolk, Va.
- R. J. BAKER (1935)  
 American Merchant Marine Institute, Inc.  
 11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- WILLIAM J. BALL (1946)  
 Thacher, Jones, Casey & Ball  
 Balfour Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- BENN BARBER (1946)  
 Waterman Steamship Corporation  
 19 Rector Street, New York 6, N. Y.
- NORMAN M. BARRON (1928)  
 Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
 27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHARLES W. BARTLETT (1934)  
 Ely, Bradford, Bartlett, Thompson & Brown  
 49 Federal Street, Boston 10, Mass.
- ARTHUR M. BECKER (1946)  
 839 - 17th Street, N. W., Washington 6, D. C.
- GORDON L. BECKER (1945)  
 Scoll & Longcope  
 25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- GEO. E. BEECHWOOD (1930)  
 Conlen, LaBrum & Beechwood  
 Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- WILLIAM T. BEEKS (1948)  
 Evans, McLaren, Lane, Powell & Beeks  
 1111 Dexter Horton Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- JAMES S. BENN, JR. (1939)  
 804 Philadelphia National Bank Building  
 1417 Sansom Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- LT. COMDR. W. J. BENNETT, USN (1947)  
 Legal Office, 8th Naval District  
 Federal Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- CHARLES G. BERGIN (1948)  
 114 Webster Avenue, New Rochelle, N. Y.
- LT. COMDR. HOWARD BERGMAN, USN (1947)  
 Assistant District Legal Officer for Admiralty  
 Thirteenth Naval District Headquarters, Seattle, Wash.

- HENRY I. BERNARD (1934)  
Johnson & Higgins  
63 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- GEO. WHITEFIELD BETTS, JR. (1903)  
Hunt, Hill & Betts  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- FREDERICK W. BICKMANN, JR. (1947)  
Oil Transfer Corporation  
17 Battery Place, New York 4, N. Y.
- ROBERT W. BIKLE (1946)  
Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- HAROLD F. BIRNBAUM (1927)  
Loeb and Loeb  
610 Pacific Mutual Building  
523 West Sixth Street, Los Angeles 14, Cal.
- BARRON F. BLACK (1943)  
Vandeventer & Black  
Citizens Bank Building, Norfolk 10, Va.
- HENRY C. BLACKISTON, JR. (1946)  
Lord, Day & Lord  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- ANTHONY BLASI (1940)  
United States Maritime Commission  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- LT. CHARLES A. BLOCHER, USN (1947)  
U. S. Naval Port Facilities  
Navy #3930, Box 23, F. P. O., San Francisco, Cal.
- ARTHUR M. BOAL (1923)  
Tompkins, Boal & Tompkins  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HENRY J. BOGATKO (1927)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LAWRENCE BOGLE (1932)  
Bogle, Bogle & Gates  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- CHARLES S. BOLSTER (1927)  
Bingham, Dana & Gould  
1 Federal Street, Boston 10, Mass.



- JAMES BOSTWICK (1948)  
Pyne, Lynch & Smith  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- SYDNEY W. BOWSER (1939)  
15 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ALLAN B. A. BRADLEY (1921)  
Lord, Day & Lord  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- STUART B. BRADLEY (1944)  
Seago, Pipin, Bradley & Vetter  
135 South LaSalle Street, Chicago 3, Ill.
- THOMAS L. BRADY (1941)  
Tugboat Underwriting Syndicate  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ROBERT BRANAND, JR. (1931)  
175 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago 4, Ill.
- GEORGE S. BRENGLE (1922)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- REID R. BRIGGS (1945)  
Lillick, Geary & McHose  
634 South Spring Street, Los Angeles 14, Cal.
- GEORGE M. BRODHEAD (1944)  
Rawle & Henderson  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- PRENTICE W. BROWER (1948)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- EVERETT H. BROWN, JR. (1919)  
Clark, Brown, McCown, Fortenbaugh & Young  
1900 Girard Trust Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- GEORGE W. BROWN, JR. (1948)  
Benckenstein, Brown & Wells  
614 San Jacinto Building, Beaumont, Texas
- JAMES D. BROWN (1931)  
Purrington & McConnell  
52 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN R. BROWN (1937)  
Royston & Rayzor  
Cotton Exchange Building, Houston, Texas

- RALPH W. BROWN (1922)  
New York Telephone Company  
140 West Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- FREDERICK W. BRUNE (1927)  
Semmes, Bowen & Semmes  
10 Light Street (25th floor), Baltimore 2, Md.
- JOSEPH M. BRUSH (1934)  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- GERALD H. BUCEY (1942)  
Merritt, Summers & Bucey  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- E. MYRON BULL (1942)  
A. H. Bull Steamship Company  
115 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- FRANK A. BULL (1941)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN S. BULL (1939)  
Moran Towing & Transportation Co.  
17 Battery Place, New York 4, N. Y.
- EDMUND C. BURKE (1946)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- MORGAN J. BURKE, JR. (1945)  
Dorsey & Adams  
44 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS C. BURKE (1914)  
1031 Marine Trust Building, Buffalo 3, N. Y.
- CHARLES D. BURKINSHAW (1940)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHARLES BURLINGHAM (1916)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN J. BURNS (1943)  
Burns, Currie, Walker & Rich  
40 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN T. BYRNE (1935)  
Talbot, Bird & Co., Inc.  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- THOMAS E. BYRNE, JR. (1944)  
Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.

## C

- H. E. CABAUD, JR. (1945)  
Johnson & Higgins  
311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- BYRON K. CALLAN (1947)  
United States Navigation Co., Inc.  
17 Battery Place, New York 4, N. Y.
- C. GORDON CAMPBELL (1946)  
Fire Association of Philadelphia  
401 Walnut Street, Philadelphia 6, Pa.
- IRA A. CAMPBELL (1918)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOSEPH R. CANNATA (1947)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM H. CANTWELL (1947)  
47 East 87th Street, Apt. 3B, New York 28, N. Y.
- JOSEPH CARDILLO, JR. (1947)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOSEPH WALLACE CARNWATH (1940)  
11 Primrose Place, Summit, N. J.
- JOHN TILNEY CARPENTER (1921)  
90 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- ANDREE S. CARROLL (Mrs.) (1946)  
540 West 165th Street, New York 32, N. Y.
- WALTER CARROLL (1921)  
Terriberry, Young, Rault & Carroll  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- EUGENE P. CARVER, JR. (1922)  
84 State Street, Boston 9, Mass.
- JOHN T. CASEY (1943)  
Admiralty & Shipping Division  
Department of Justice—Room 3129  
Washington, D. C.
- ANTHONY B. CATALDO (1945)  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- VINCENT A. CATOGGIO (1936)  
Purdy, Lamb & Catoggio  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

- HENRY H. CHAFFE (1917)  
Chaffe, McCall, Toler & Phillips  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- ROY W. CHAMBERLAIN (1935)  
Tankers Company Incorporated  
17 Battery Place, New York 4, N. Y.
- ALLAN E. CHARLES (1944)  
Lillick, Geary, Olson, Adams & Charles  
311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- ANDRE V. CHERBONNIER (1934)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- HAWLEY T. CHESTER (1943)  
Chubb & Son  
90 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ALBERT F. CHRYSAL (1942)  
5 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- VICTOR S. CICHANOWICZ (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHAUNCEY I. CLARK (1914)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- LT. COMDR. SAMUEL R. CLARKE, USNR (1947)  
Legal Office, Third Naval District  
90 Church Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ARTHUR W. CLEMENT (1925)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ALFRED T. CLUFF (1943)  
Room 1006B, United States Court House  
Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- PAUL L. CLUGSTON (1947)  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES C. COGGILL (1944)  
Admiralty Branch, Legal Division  
Office of the Chief of Transportation  
The Pentagon, Washington 25, D. C.

- LEAVENWORTH COLBY (1945)  
Admiralty & Shipping Section  
Department of Justice  
Washington 25, D. C.
- JOHN C. COLES (1947)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM E. COLLINS (1925)  
United States Maritime Commission  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- FREDERIC CONGER (1922)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM J. CONLEN (1914)  
Conlen, LaBrum & Beechwood  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- LT. COMDR. WILLIAM I. CONNELLY (1943)  
2134 Coast Guard Headquarters  
1300 E Street, N. W., Washington 25, D. C.
- WALTER X. CONNOR (1941)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES J. CONRAN (1944)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- GEORGE A. CONROY (1923)  
15 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAY T. COOPER (1945)  
Dorr, Cooper & Hays  
Merchants Exchange Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- DAVID L. CORBIN (1946)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- WILLIAM C. COUPLAND (1945)  
819 Citizens Bank Building, Norfolk, Va.
- FRANK P. COX (1947)  
U. S. Court House  
Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN W. CRANDALL (1922)  
Hunt, Hill & Betts  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

- H. VICTOR CRAWFORD (1927)  
Crawford & Parsons  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN C. CRAWLEY (1927)  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDWARD F. CUMMERFORD (1948)  
150 Nassau Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HELEN CLARE CUNNINGHAM (Miss) (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOSEPH M. CUNNINGHAM (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- WARD R. CUNNINGHAM (1928)  
Chubb & Son  
90 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LEO J. CURREN (1948)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.

## D

- MATTHEW L. DANAHAR (1947)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- THEODORE R. DANKMEYER (1939)  
Niles, Barton, Morrow & Yost  
Baltimore Life Building, Baltimore 1, Md.
- WALTER A. DARBY, JR. (1948)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- HENRY P. DART, JR. (1923)  
Dart, Guidry & Price  
Canal Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- WILLIAM N. DAVEY (1914)  
Johnson & Higgins  
63 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- H. ALAN DAWSON (1916)  
Biddle, Paul, Dawson & Yocum  
Land Title Building, Philadelphia, Pa.

- HAROLD S. DEMING (1918)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- MACDONALD DEMING (1948)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- MARTIN P. DETELS (1923)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EBERHARD P. DEUTSCH (1943)  
Deutsch, Kerrigan & Stiles  
Hibernia Bank Building, New Orleans, La.
- HENRY W. DIECK (1930)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- C. JOHN DIROSSE (1945)  
30 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JAMES B. DOAK (1948)  
Conlen, LaBrum & Beechwood  
1507 Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- EDWARD G. DOBRIN (1932)  
Bogle, Bogle & Gates  
Central Building, Seattle, Wash.
- SWEENEY J. DOEHRING (1948)  
Fulbright, Crooker, Freeman & Bates  
12th Floor, Second National Bank Building  
Houston, Texas
- JAMES J. DONAHUE (1946)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ROBERT M. DONOHUE (1947)  
Hunt, Hill & Betts  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES J. DONOVAN, JR. (1946)  
Room 1412, 50 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN C. DONOVAN (1925-1937; 1942)  
U. S. Maritime Commission  
Washington 25, D. C.
- FREDERICK W. DORR (1931)  
Dorr, Cooper & Hays  
Merchants Exchange Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.

- SAMUEL R. DORRANCE (1948)  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- C. FRANK DOUGHERTY (1944)  
Atlantic Gulf and West Indies Steamship Lines  
Pier 34, North River, New York 13, N. Y.
- THOMAS M. DOUGHERTY (1945)  
Dougherty, Ryan & McKiernan  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILBUR E. DOW, JR. (1943)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDWARD R. DOWNING (1947)  
Admiralty Division, Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- JOHN M. DREWRY (1947)  
Neblett & Drewry  
815—15th Street, N.W., Washington, D. C.
- ROBERT H. DUFF (1947)  
Ewers & Duff  
1308 F Street, N.W., Washington 4, D. C.
- OLIVER J. DUFOUR (1936)  
American Marine Hull Insurance Syndicate  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN IRVIN DUGAN (1945)  
Room 1713, 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN DUNAIF (1946)  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- CORYDON B. DUNHAM (1939)  
20 Broad Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHARLES F. DUTCH (1916)  
Putnam, Bell, Dutch & Santry  
60 State Street, Boston 9, Mass.
- DAVID W. DYER (1947)  
Smathers, Thompson, Maxwell & Dyer  
Alfred I. DuPont Building, Miami, Fla.



## E

- BERTRAM G. EADIE (1945)  
R. F. D. #2, Vienna, Va.
- CLARENCE S. EASTHAM (1944)  
Cotton Exchange Building, Houston, Texas
- SEYMOUR P. EDGERTON (1931)  
Bingham, Dana & Gould  
1 Federal Street, Boston 10, Mass.
- HERBERT F. EGGERT (1920)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HENRY C. EIDENBACH (1932)  
Hagen & Eidenbach  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ROBERT EIKEL (1948)  
Royston & Rayzor  
625 Cotton Exchange Building, Houston 2, Texas
- RALPH H. EISENDRATH (1943)  
Suite 1018, 8 South Dearborn Street, Chicago 3, Ill.
- ELI ELLIS (1942)  
33 East End Avenue, New York 28, N. Y.
- ROBERT S. ERSKINE (1920)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- CARL V. ESSERY (1925)  
Hill, Essery, Lewis & Andrews  
Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- JAMES M. ESTABROOK (1946)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- HERBERT S. EVANS (1941)  
Boston Tow Boat Co.  
Lewis Wharf, Boston, Mass.
- IRVING L. EVANS (1935)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROWLAND CADWALADER EVANS, JR. (1943)  
Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- IRA L. EWERS (1939)  
1308 F Street, N. W., Washington, D. C.

## F

- HOWARD F. FANNING (1942)  
United States Maritime Commission  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- CAPT. RAYMOND F. FARWELL, USNR (1942)  
209 Commerce Hall, University of Washington  
Seattle 5, Wash.
- KEITH R. FERGUSON (1946)  
442 Post Office Building, San Francisco 1, Cal.
- BARTON P. FERRIS (1941)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- MORRIS DOUW FERRIS (1921)  
Riggs, Ferris, Geer & Mygatt  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM J. FERRIS (1946)  
37 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHARLES N. FIDDLER (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- HAROLD B. FINN (1934)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- FREDERICK FISH (1948)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- LITTLETON H. FITCH (1926)  
32 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- GILBERT S. FLEISCHER (1944)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- WILLIAM J. FLEMING (1947)  
95 Liberty Street, New York 6, N. Y.
- H. H. FLEMMING (1921)  
22 Ferry Street, Kingston, N. Y.
- HON. BERNARD J. FLYNN (1945)  
United States Attorney  
District of Maryland  
Post Office Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- GERARD J. FLYNN (1948)  
449—74th Street, Brooklyn, N. Y.

- FRANK J. FOLEY (1923)  
Foley & Statt  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN J. FOLEY (1948)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- J. FRANKLIN FORT (1942)  
Radner & Zito  
Tower Building, 14th & K Streets, Washington 6, D. C.
- SAMUEL B. FORTENBAUGH, JR. (1935)  
Clark, Brown, McCown, Fortenbaugh & Young  
Girard Trust Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- SPARKMAN D. FOSTER (1945)  
Foster, Lott & Lutz  
Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- CODY FOWLER (1939)  
Fowler, White, Gillen, Yancey & Humkey  
Citizens Building, Tampa, Fla.
- EZRA G. BENEDICT FOX (1924)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- IRVING H. FRANK (1924)  
Robert Dollar Building  
311 California Street, San Francisco, Cal.
- JAMES E. FREEHILL (1943)  
Reid, Cunningham & Freehill  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- SANFORD H. E. FREUND (1925)  
Shearman & Sterling & Wright  
20 Exchange Place, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDWIN J. FRIEDMAN (1945)  
Levinson & Friedman  
Northern Life Tower, Seattle 1, Wash.

## G

- FREDERICK D. GABEL, Esq. (1948)  
Hagedorn & Company  
60 Beaver Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN L. GALEY (1925)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.

- JOHN H. GALLOWAY, JR. (1943)  
59 Edgemont Road, Scarsdale, N. Y.
- KENNETH GARDNER (1914)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOSEPH J. GEARY (1941)  
Lillick, Geary, Olson, Adams & Charles  
311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- BON GEASLIN (1939)  
1740 G Street, N. W., Washington, D. C.
- JOHN F. GERITY (1944)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- FRANK H. GERRODETTE (1942)  
35-28 - 163rd Street, Flushing, L. I., N. Y.
- RENATO C. GIALLORENZI (1946)  
43 Cedar Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- J. S. GILBERTSON (1946)  
Hartford Fire Insurance Company  
Hartford, Connecticut
- WILLIAM A. GILLEN (1948)  
Fowler, White, Gillen, Yancey & Humkey  
Citizens Building, Tampa 2, Fla.
- EUGENE F. GILLIGAN (1943)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS J. GODDARD (1943)  
Chubb & Son  
90 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HERMAN GOLDMAN (1943)  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- LEO ROTHSTEIN GOLDMAN (1943)  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- MILTON I. GOLDSTEIN (1945)  
1730 Boatmen's Bank Bldg., St. Louis 2, Mo.
- H. SHIPPEN GOODHUE (1948)  
Room 1034, 73 Tremont Street, Boston 8, Mass.
- F. PORTER GORE (1945)  
Francis C. Carr & Co., Inc.  
80 Maiden Lane, New York 7, N. Y.

- RICHARD K. GOULD (1947)  
98 Exchange Street, Portland 3, Maine
- MAJOR MILTON C. GRACE (1948)  
Chief of the Admiralty Branch  
Legal Office, Office of the Chief of Transportation  
Pentagon Building, Washington, D. C.
- CHALMERS G. GRAHAM (1929)  
Graham & Morse  
310 Sansome Street, San Francisco, Cal.
- RICHARD T. GRAHAM (1948)  
52 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JULIAN S. GRAVELY, JR. (1946)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LOUIS E. GRECO (1947)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- STANLEY S. GREEN (1945)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- FARNHAM P. GRIFFITHS (1923)  
McCutchen, Thomas, Matthew, Griffiths & Greene  
Balfour Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- WILLIAM A. GRIMES (1931)  
Ober, Williams, Grimes & Stinson  
Baltimore Trust Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- LITTLETON GROOM (1948)  
46 Princeton Avenue, Princeton, N. J.
- LOUIS C. GUIDRY (1944)  
Dart, Guidry & Price  
Canal Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- LOUIS J. GUSMANO (1948)  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

## H

- CHARLES J. HAAS (1935)  
Marine Office of America  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LESLIE J. HAEFNER (1947)  
Fireman's Fund Insurance Company  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

- HARRY L. HAEHL, JR. (1945)  
 Lillick, Geary, Olsen, Adams & Charles  
 311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- CHARLES W. HAGEN (1923)  
 Hagen & Eidenbach  
 111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- CHARLES S. HAIGHT (1933)  
 Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
 80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- HON. ROBERT HALE (1921)  
 1507 House Office Building, Washington, D. C. or  
 76 Pearl Street, Portland, Me.
- KENNETH B. HALSTEAD (1943)  
 71 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- GEORGE J. HAMMERMAN (1946)  
 25 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- LEO F. HANAN (1940)  
 Macklin, Brown, Lenahan & Speer  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- CHARLES HANN, JR. (1923)  
 South Sea Avenue, West Yarmouth, Cape Cod, Mass.
- MICHAEL E. HANRAHAN (1944)  
 67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ADOLPH HANSEN (1946)  
 Tipple & Plitt  
 150 Nassau Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM HARISON (1909)  
 Harison & Hewitt  
 43 Cedar Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- CHARLES W. HARVEY (1927)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM BRADFORD HARWOOD (1941)  
 American Marine Hull Insurance Syndicate  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- L. A. HASLUP (1948)  
 Dean of the College of Law  
 John B. Stetson University, DeLand, Fla.
- J. FRANCIS HAYDEN (1946)  
 232 United States Court House  
 Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.

COMDR. EDWARD B. HAYES, USNR (1943)  
Office of the Judge Advocate General  
Room 2327—Navy Department  
Washington 25, D. C.

JOHN HAYS (1943)  
Dorr, Cooper & Hays  
Merchants Exchange Bldg., San Francisco 4, Cal.

NICHOLAS J. HEALY, III (1938)  
Nelson, Healy, Baillie & Burke  
52 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

WILBUR H. HECHT (1941)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.

CHRISTOPHER E. HECKMAN (1928)  
Foley & Martin  
64 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.

JAMES S. HEMINGWAY (1929)  
Lord, Day & Lord  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

JOSEPH W. HENDERSON (1922)  
Rawle & Henderson  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.

LYMAN HENRY (1941)  
Hall, Henry & Oliver  
215 Market Street, San Francisco 5, Cal.

WILLIAM J. HERBERT (1945)  
Neare, Gibbs & Company  
3020 Carew Tower, Cincinnati 2, Ohio

HENRY M. HEWITT (1920)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

WALTER P. HICKEY (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

CHARLES R. HICKOX (1911)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

JAMES J. HIGGINS (1948)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

- ROBERT E. HILL (1923)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- SHERWIN A. HILL (1925)  
Hill, Essery, Lewis & Andrews  
Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- LT. COMDR. RICHARD J. HOGAN, USN (1947)  
Office of the Judge Advocate General  
Navy Department, Washington, D. C.
- THEODOR HOLM (1944)  
Toplis & Harding, Inc.  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ARTHUR I. HOPKINS (1943)  
S. N. Eben Corporation  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- OSCAR R. HOUSTON (1916)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- CHARLES B. HOWARD (1947)  
Merritt, Summers & Bucey  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- WALTER T. HUGHES, JR. (1945)  
Reid, Cunningham & Freehill  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- PERRY A. HULL (1944)  
551 Fifth Avenue, New York 17, N. Y.
- WALTER HUMKEY (1948)  
Fowler, White, Gillen, Yancey & Humkey  
620 Seybold Building, Miami, Fla.
- PETER F. HUNT (1947)  
535 Fifth Avenue, Suite 902, New York 17, N. Y.
- JOHN ROBERT HUNTER (1947)  
Frank B. Hall & Co., Inc.  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROSCOE H. HUPPER (1917)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- DANIEL HUTTENBRAUCK (1947)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.



## I

- JOSEPH K. INNESS (1921)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- GEORGE INSELMAN (1945)  
Marine Office of America  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- THOMAS J. IRVING (1945)  
Purdy, Lamb & Catoggio  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

## J

- SIDNEY R. JACKSON (1946)  
Chambers & Jackson  
5 East 57th Street, New York 22, N. Y.
- T. K. JACKSON, JR. (1948)  
Ambrecht, Inge, Twitty & Jackson  
403 Merchants National Bank Building, Mobile, Ala.
- PAUL R. JANSEN (1940)  
Fulton P. & I. Underwriting Agency, Inc.  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- R. ARTHUR JETT (1941)  
Citizens Bank Building, Norfolk 10, Va.
- ALFRED P. JOBSON (1944)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- J. G. F. JOHNSON (1945)  
Point Pleasant, W. Va.
- NELSON J. JOHNSON (1943)  
Hagen & Eidenbach  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- THOMAS M. JOHNSTON (1948)  
P. O. Box 936, Norfolk 1, Va.
- HARRY B. JONES, JR. (1941)  
Jones & Bronson  
Colman Building, Seattle, Wash.
- PAUL M. JONES (1946)  
Purrington & McConnell  
52 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- VERNON S. JONES (1923)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

## K

- EDWARD C. KALAJDZIAN (1948)  
Mallery Lane, West Nyack, N. Y.
- EDWARD J. KEANE (1925)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- RUTH A. KEARNEY (1948)  
Admiralty and Shipping Section  
Department of Justice, Washington, D. C.
- JOSEPH G. KEARNS (1942)  
Daniel F. Young, Inc.  
8 Bridge Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- CLETUS KEATING (1917)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- LT. COMDR. CHARLES B. KELLY, USN (1947)  
Headquarters Sixth Naval District  
Charleston, S. C.
- ROBERT G. KELLY (1948)  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- JOSEPH C. KENNEY (1945)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HENRY KLAHRE (1943)  
Chubb & Son  
90 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ARNOLD W. KNAUTH (1921)  
Lloyd, Decker, Williams & Knauth  
60 East 42nd Street, New York 17, N. Y.
- ELLIS KNOWLES (1927)  
Marine Transport Lines, Inc.  
11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN W. KNOX (1947)  
Legal Department, Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., Inc.  
26 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- P. J. KOOIMAN (1927)  
Abberley, Bryde, Kooiman, MacFall & Amon  
55 Liberty Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- PETER J. KORSAN (1946)  
Fire Association of Philadelphia  
401 Walnut Street, Philadelphia 6, Pa.

- DAVID A. KRAEMER (1948)  
Hagen & Eidenbach  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EDGAR R. KRAETZER (1945)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- EVERETT W. KRAMER (1946)  
New Jersey Zinc Company  
160 Front Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- GUNTHER F. KRAUSE (1925)  
Spalding Building, Portland, Ore.
- CARL P. KREMER (1935)  
U. S. P. & I. Agency, Inc.  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LESLIE C. KRUSEN (1928)  
Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- LT. GEORGE P. KURTZ, USN (1948)  
District Legal Office, Third Naval District  
90 Church Street, New York 7, N. Y.

## L

- J. HARRY LABRUM (1930)  
Conlen, LaBrum & Beechwood  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- PAUL H. LACQUES (1929)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM POTTER LAGE (1943)  
Hatch, Wolfe, Nash & Ten Eyck  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDMUND F. LAMB (1930)  
Purdy, Lamb & Catoggio  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- NICHOLAS D. LAMORTE (1947)  
Reid, Cunningham & Freehill  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM H. LANE (1944)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.

- GEORGE M. LANNING (1921)  
Baird, White & Lanning  
Bank of Commerce Building, Norfolk, Va.
- REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN (1945)  
Treadwell & Laughlin  
505 Mills Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- ALEXANDER R. LAWTON, JR. (1925)  
Lawton & Cunningham  
26 Bryan Street East, Savannah, Ga.
- RICHARD S. LEAHY (1944)  
Macklin, Brown, Lenahan & Speer  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- VERNON T. LEE (1944)  
Socony-Vacuum Oil Co.  
26 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- SELIM LEMLE (1932)  
Lemle, Moreno & Lemle  
Hibernia Bank Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- RICHARD F. LENAHAN (1925)  
Macklin, Brown, Lenahan & Speer  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- SAM L. LEVINSON (1947)  
Levinson & Friedman  
Northern Life Tower, Seattle 1, Wash.
- HARRY G. LIESE (1948)  
Herman Goldman  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- IRA S. LILLICK (1929)  
Lillick, Geary, Olson, Adams & Charles  
311 California Street, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- ROBERT A. LILLY (1936)  
Stapleton, Flynn & Lilly  
56 Beaver Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- LT. COMDR. EDWARD G. LINSLEY, USNR (1946)  
Admiralty Officer, Twelfth Naval District  
Federal Office Building, San Francisco, Cal.
- SAMUEL LLOYD (1944)  
Lloyd, Decker, Williams & Knauth  
60 East 42nd Street, New York 17, N. Y.
- WILLIAM LOGAN, JR. (1945)  
Hunt, Hill & Betts  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

- HOWARD M. LONG (1916)  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- HOWARD T. LONG (1937)  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- MARTIN HENRY LONG (1938)  
Long & Freemen  
Barnett National Bank Building, Jacksonville, Fla.
- STANLEY B. LONG (1945)  
Bogle, Bogle & Gates  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- EDWIN LONGCOPE (1937)  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- HENRY N. LONGLEY (1923)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- GEORGE DEFOREST LORD (1921)  
Lord, Day & Lord  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- HERBERT M. LORD (1943)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS L. LOTT (1946)  
Foster, Lott & Lutz  
Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- ARTHUR O. LOUIS (1945)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILDER LUCAS (1948)  
Sullivan, Finley & Lucas  
1515 Ambassador Building, St. Louis, Mo.
- JOSEPH F. LULEY (1935)  
Lucas Point, Old Greenwich, Conn.
- L.T. CARL E. LUNDIN, JR., USNR (1946)  
Legal Office, 12th Naval District  
Building 178, Treasure Island, San Francisco, Cal.
- ALLAN B. LUTZ (1941)  
Foster, Lott & Lutz  
Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- J. M. RICHARDSON LYETH (1920)  
Lyeth & Voorhees  
20 Exchange Place, New York 5, N. Y.

- ANTHONY V. LYNCH, JR. (1921)  
 Pyne, Lynch & Smith  
 116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- L.T. COMDR. ALFRED R. LYNGBY, USN (1948)  
 Admiralty Section, Office of the Judge Advocate General  
 Navy Department, Washington 25, D. C.
- JOHN A. LYON (1930)  
 Platow & Lyon  
 60 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- Mc
- GERARD M. McALLISTER (1948)  
 17 State Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- PARKER McCOLLESTER (1942)  
 Lord, Day & Lord  
 25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- ALVIN McCONNELL (1938)  
 305 First National Bank Building, Mobile, Ala.
- FRANK J. McCONNELL (1923)  
 Purrington & McConnell  
 52 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROBERT G. McCREARY (1943)  
 Leckie, McCreary, Schlitz & Hinslea  
 Union Commerce Building, Cleveland, Ohio
- EUGENE P. McCUE (1939)  
 Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
 96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ANDREW J. McELHINNEY (1944)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- RUTH M. McELVENY (Miss) (1946)  
 Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- P. J. R. McENTEGART (1923)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- THOMAS F. McGOVERN (1943)  
 Admiralty Section, Department of Justice  
 Washington, D. C.
- NICHOLAS S. MCGOWIN (1948)  
 Armbrecht, Inge, Twitty & Jackson  
 P. O. Box 1109, Mobile 6, Ala.

- ARCHIBALD F. McGRATH (1945)  
11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN C. McHOSE (1932)  
Lillick, Geary & McHose  
634 South Spring Street, Los Angeles, Cal.
- JOSEPH B. McKEON (1945)  
Wright & McKeon  
433 California Street, San Francisco, Cal.
- LAWRENCE W. McKEOWN (1946)  
50 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- GERALD J. McKERNAN (1927-1936; 1942)  
Macklin, Brown, Lenahan & Speer  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN F. X. McKIERNAN (1948)  
Dougherty, Ryan & McKiernan  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES McKOWN, JR. (1944)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN A. McMANUS (1921)  
Spencer, Ordway & Wierum  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.

## M

- HARRY M. MACK (1943)  
Neare, Gibbs & Co.  
3020 Carew Tower, Cincinnati 2, Ohio
- RUSSELL A. MACKAY (1945)  
McCutchen, Thomas, Matthew, Griffiths & Greene  
Balfour Building, San Francisco 4, Cal.
- MARK W. MACLAY (1914)  
Lyeth & Voorhees  
20 Exchange Place, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES B. MAGNOR (1946)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDWARD H. MAHLA (1948)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- WILLIAM V. MAHON (1946)  
Shipowners Claims Bureau, Inc.  
25 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

- WALTER E. MALONEY (1944)  
Burns, Currie, Walker & Rich  
40 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- MCALISTER MARSHALL (1948)  
McKeehan, Merrick, Arter & Stewart  
Terminal Tower, Cleveland, Ohio
- LT. COMDR. GUILBERT W. MARTIN, USN (1948)  
Admiralty Section, Office of the Judge Advocate General  
Navy Department, Washington 25, D. C.
- ANDREW R. MARTINEZ (1939)  
Terriberry, Young, Rault & Carroll  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- FRANK C. MASON (1926)  
Mahar & Mason  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- STEVENSON MASSON (1944)  
105 S. Frederick Street, Baltimore 2, Md.
- GILBERT MATHER (1930)  
Mather & Co.  
226 Walnut Street, Philadelphia 6, Pa.
- LEONARD J. MATTESON (1920)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- PAUL C. MATTHEWS (1945)  
11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOSEPH MAYPER (1943)  
Transatlantic Passenger Conference  
25th floor, 80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOSEPH M. MEEHAN (1942)  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM MELLAN (1946)  
3244 McKinley Street, N. W., Washington, D. C.
- G. HUNTER MERRITT (1924)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS P. MESICK (1946)  
52 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROLF T. MICHELSEN (1942)  
Michelsen & Elliott  
55 Liberty Street, New York 5, N. Y.



- THOMAS H. MIDDLETON (1924)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- CHARLES E. MILLER (1942)  
J. C. Griswold & Co., Inc.  
60 Beaver Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- L. VERNON MILLER (1921)  
Marbury, Miller & Evans  
Maryland Trust Building, Baltimore, Md.
- CHARLES R. MILLETT (1948)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HENRY P. MOLLOY (1940)  
Wood, Molloy, France & Tully  
25 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JAMES H. MOLLOY (1936)  
United States Commissioner  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- JOHN C. MONROE (1939)  
Monroe & Ard  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- LT. JOHN A. MONTGOMERY, JR., USN (1946)  
District Admiralty Officer  
Legal Office, Fifth Naval District, Naval Base  
Norfolk 11, Va.
- LEIGHTON K. MONTGOMERY (1946)  
15 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- RICHARD B. MONTGOMERY, JR. (1938)  
Montgomery, Fenner and Brown  
Maritime Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- LEROY DENMAN MOODY (1945)  
Baker, Botts, Andrews & Parish  
Esperson Building, Houston 2, Texas
- B. ALLSTON MOORE (1942)  
Moore & Mouzon  
4 Gillon Street, Charleston 3, S. C.
- JOHN C. MOORE (1946)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- SPRINGER H. MOORE, JR. (1942)  
c/o Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.

- JAMES J. MORRISON (1948)  
Audubon Building, New Orleans, La.
- JOSHUA MORRISON (1948)  
39 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- THOMAS L. MORROW (1946)  
Bogle, Bogle & Gates  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- CLARENCE G. MORSE (1946)  
Graham & Morse  
310 Sansome Street, San Francisco, Cal.
- RUSSELL T. MOUNT (1914)  
Mendes & Mount  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS F. MOUNT (1931)  
Rawle & Henderson  
Packard Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- HAROLD A. MOUZON (1940)  
Moore & Mouzon  
4 Gillon Street, Charleston 3, S. C.
- FREDERICK W. MUELLER (1945)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ARTHUR E. MULLER (1925)  
Bailey & Muller  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- DENIS MULLIGAN (1947)  
15 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- EDWIN S. MURPHY (1923)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- E. W. MURRAY (1930)  
Appleton & Cox, Inc.  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

## N

- J. NEWTON NASH (1944)  
Hatch, Wolfe, Nash & Ten Eyck  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROBERT P. NASH (1943)  
Standard Oil Company  
30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York 20, N. Y.

- A. HOWARD NEELY (1921)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- WALTER C. NEELY (1921)  
1022 Broad Street Station Building  
1617 Pennsylvania Boulevard  
Philadelphia 3, Pa.
- EDWARD A. NEILEY (1941)  
Scoll & Longcope  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- J. P. NELSON (1920)  
Johnson & Higgins  
63 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- O. TAFT NELSON (1942)  
Nelson, Healy, Baillie & Burke  
52 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- FRANCIS X. NESTOR (1946)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN W. NEVILLE (1934)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HENRY W. NICHOLS (1922)  
National Surety Corp.  
4 Albany Street, New York 6, N. Y.
- GEORGE T. NICKELL (1944)  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- LOUIS W. NIGGEMAN (1944)  
Fireman's Fund Insurance Company  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- GERHARD M. NILSSEN (1947)  
Marsh & McLennan, Inc.  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- RICHARD M. NOACK (1947)  
Fulton P. & I. Underwriting Agency, Inc.  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- J. JOSEPH NOBLE (1946)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

MARTIN J. NORRIS (1948)  
 United States Maritime Commission  
 45 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

JOSEPH M. NUGENT (1941)  
 Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., Inc.  
 26 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

## O

JOHN W. OAST, JR. (1918)  
 Citizens Bank Building, Norfolk 10, Va.

EDWARD L. P. O'CONNOR (1940)  
 135 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.

ALFRED OGDEN (1923)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

ADRIAN J. O'KANE (1928)  
 Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
 27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.

MARGARET D. O'KEEFE (MISS) (1947)  
 Newtex Steamship Corporation  
 52 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.

J. WARD O'NEILL (1946)  
 Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
 80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

T. L. OSBORN (1936)  
 Osborn & Lange, Inc., Room A-1035  
 175 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago 4, Ill.

JOHN OSNATO, JR. (1948)  
 Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
 80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

L.T. COMDR. HERBERT E. OST (1947)  
 Department of Justice, Admiralty Claims Division  
 45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.

HENRY E. OTTO (1930)  
 Otto & Easterday  
 2 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

SAMUEL C. OTTO (1934)  
 c/o Otto & Easterday  
 2 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

## P

- COURTLAND PALMER (1921)  
Suite 4326—30 Rockefeller Plaza  
New York 20, N. Y.
- RAYMOND PARMER (1923)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- J. LESTER PARSONS, JR. (1939)  
Room 400, 52 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- LESTER S. PARSONS (1938)  
Venable, Miller, Parsons & Kyle  
Western Union Building, Norfolk 10, Va.
- FRANCIS E. PEGRAM, JR. (1946)  
Eckhardt & Pegram  
1411 Fidelity Building, Baltimore 1, Md.
- F. W. PERRY (1945)  
Yangtze Insurance Assn. Ltd.  
Union Ins. Society of Canton, Ltd.  
400 Colman Building, Seattle, Wash.
- CHRISTY GEORGE PETERS (1946)  
60 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- SHERMAN V. PETRIE, JR. (1943)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ESMOND PHELPS (1921)  
Phelps, Dunbar, Marks & Claverie  
United Fruit Co. Building, New Orleans, La.
- PALMER PILLANS (1920)  
Pillans, Reams, Tappan & Wood  
510 Van Antwerp Building  
P. O. Box 935, Mobile 5, Ala.
- MICHAEL PIZNAK (1947)  
Fulton P. & I. Underwriting Agency, Inc.  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EDWARD F. PLATOW (1930)  
Platow & Lyon  
60 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- GEORGE G. PLATOW (1947)  
Platow & Lyon  
60 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.

- ALBERT V. PLOTNER (1946)  
 General Traffic Service Company, Inc.  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WHARTON POOR (1921)  
 Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
 80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- L. DEGROVE POTTER (1921)  
 Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- EUGENE POWDERMAKER (1929)  
 84 William Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- PERCY J. POWER (1947)  
 Hill, Essery, Lewis & Andrews  
 Penobscot Building, Detroit 26, Mich.
- F. HERBERT PREM (1925)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN C. PRIZER (1918)  
 Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
 72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- DAVID P. PUGH (1936)  
 134 South 4th Street, Philadelphia 6, Pa.
- WARNER PYNE (1921)  
 Pyne, Lynch & Smith  
 116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

## Q

- CHARLES E. QUANDT (1948)  
 Niles, Barton, Morrow & Yost  
 Baltimore Life Building, Baltimore 1, Md.
- JOHN F. QUARTO (1944)  
 Hagen & Eidenbach  
 111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EDWARD A. QUINLAN (1927)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- JOHN L. QUINLAN (1930)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.

## R

- WILLIAM RADNER (1942)  
Radner & Zito  
Tower Building, 14th & K Streets, Washington, D. C.
- REUBEN RAGLAND (1925)  
Ragland, Kurz & Layton  
Consolidated Building, Jacksonville, Fla.
- NORMAN RANDELL (1947)  
Cosmopolitan Shipping Company, Inc.  
42 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- ANTHONY J. RANDOLPH (1947)  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- GERARD A. RAULT (1947)  
913 American Bank Building, New Orleans, La.
- JOSEPH M. RAULT (1921)  
Terriberry, Young, Rault & Carroll  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- LLOYD A. RAY (1941)  
McClendon & Wheeler  
Richards Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- LUCIAN Y. RAY (1935)  
Leckie, McCreary, Schlitz & Hinslea  
Union Commerce Building, Cleveland 14, Ohio
- WM. DEWITT REAMS (1946)  
Pillans, Reams, Tappan & Wood  
Van Antwerp Building, Mobile 5, Ala.
- C. SHERWOOD REDDISH (1945)  
Despard & Co., Inc.  
1 Cedar Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HENRY E. REED (1947)  
Fireman's Fund Insurance Company  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HENRY H. REED (1930)  
Insurance Company of North America  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EDWIN K. REID (1943)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HERBERT P. REID (1943)  
Reid, Cunningham & Freehill  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.

- JAMES W. REID (1944)  
630 Fifth Avenue, New York 20, N. Y.
- EUGENE RHEINFRANK (1946)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- ALBERT E. RICE (1948)  
Burns, Currie, Walker & Rich  
40 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- J. THEODORE RICKARD (1942)  
23 Rue de la Paix, Paris 2e, France
- KARL RIEMER (1945)  
445 Park Avenue, New York 22, N. Y.
- CLEMENT C. RINEHART (1923)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- GREGORY S. RIVKINS (1928)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- A. ADDISON ROBERTS (1944)  
Fire Association of Philadelphia  
401 Walnut Street, Philadelphia, Pa.
- JAMES R. ROBERTS (1936)  
Chas. W. Hoyt Co.  
551 Fifth Avenue, New York 17, N. Y.
- ELIZABETH ROBINSON (Miss) (1927)  
60 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HERBERT L. ROBINSON (1941)  
Mystic Steamship Company  
250 Stuart Street, Boston, Mass.
- THOMAS K. ROCHE (1948)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- MAX ROCKMORE (1922)  
270 Broadway, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM A. C. ROETHEKE (1945)  
Lillick, Geary & McHose  
634 South Spring Street, Los Angeles 14, Cal.
- BERNARD ROLNICK (1947)  
Rolnick & Asofsky  
11 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.



- JULIUS J. ROSENBERG (1946)  
Suite 3008-9, 39 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- E. CURTIS ROUSE (1921)  
Crowell & Rouse  
111 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- EUGENE F. RUSSELL, JR. (1947)  
Curtis, Mallet-Prevost, Colt & Mosle  
63 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JAMES W. RYAN (1922)  
111 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- MARGARET M. RYAN (MISS) (1947)  
Dougherty, Ryan & McKiernan  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.

## S

- ARTHUR J. SANTRY (1923)  
Putnam, Bell, Dutch & Santry  
60 State Street, Boston 9, Mass.
- JOHN J. SANTRY (1942)  
U. S. P. & I. Agency, Inc.  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- LEON SARPY (1948)  
Chaffe, McCall, Toler & Phillips  
724 Whitney Building, New Orleans, La.
- LT. COMDR. R. F. SCHLEGEL, USN (1947)  
Dist. Admiralty Officer, Legal Office, U. S. Naval Base  
Los Angeles Naval Station, Long Beach 2, Cal.
- HORACE W. SCHMAHL (1946)  
19 Rector Street, New York 6, N. Y.
- SIDNEY A. SCHWARTZ (1948)  
Alexander & Ash  
76 Beaver Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- DAVID E. SCOLL (1947)  
25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- LEON T. SEAWELL (1914)  
Hughes, Little & Seawell  
Post Box 936, Norfolk 1, Va.
- LEON T. SEAWELL, JR. (1943)  
Hughes, Little & Seawell  
Post Box 936, Norfolk 1, Va.

- W. PARKER SEDGWICK (1925)  
Haight, Griffin, Deming & Gardner  
80 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- JAMES NEIL SENECA (1923-1942; 1944)  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- DONALD N. SERRELL (1948)  
Bailey & Muller  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- R. W. SHACKLEFORD (1929)  
Shackleford, Farrior & Shannon  
Tampa Theatre Building, Tampa, Fla.
- T. M. SHACKLEFORD, JR. (1929)  
Shackleford, Farrior & Shannon  
Tampa Theatre Building, Tampa, Fla.
- GEORGE J. SHAW (1945)  
Neare, Gibbs & Company  
3020 Carew Tower, Cincinnati 2, Ohio
- JOHN B. SHAW (1923)  
Krusen, Evans & Shaw  
225 South 15th Street, Philadelphia 2, Pa.
- RICHARD F. SHAW (1930-1934; 1944)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- FRANCIS M. SHEA (1943)  
Hibbs Building—723 Fifteenth Street  
Washington 5, D. C.
- JOHN R. SHENEMAN (1948)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- MALCOLM A. SHIPLEY (1947)  
Fulton P. & I. Underwriting Agency, Inc.  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- ROGER B. SIDDALL (1923)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- D. A. SIMMONS (1932)  
Simmons, Smyth & Much  
Commerce Building, Houston 2, Texas
- E. RIDGELY SIMPSON (1944)  
Merchants & Miners Transportation Company  
Pier 3, Pratt Street, Baltimore 3, Md.

- JOHN W. SIMS (1945)  
Chaffe, McCall, Toler & Phillips  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- FORREST E. SINGLE (1923)  
32 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- JOHN HENRY SKEEN (1918)  
1508 First National Bank Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- JOHN HENRY SKEEN, JR. (1942)  
Frank, Skeen & Oppenheimer  
First National Bank Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- DUDLEY C. SMITH (1946)  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- EDWARD L. SMITH (1944)  
Department of Justice  
45 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- FITZ-HENRY SMITH, JR. (1907)  
35 Congress Street, Boston 9, Mass.
- JOHN F. SONNETT (1946)  
63 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- PAUL SPEER (1925)  
United States Potash Company  
30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York 20, N. Y.
- GEORGE C. SPRAGUE (1923)  
Poultney, Vt.
- STUART SPRAGUE (1939)  
Sprague & Sprague  
36 West 44th Street, New York 18, N. Y.
- J. FRANK STALEY (1920)  
Department of Justice  
Washington, D. C.
- WILLIAM L. STANDARD (1945)  
291 Broadway, New York 7, N. Y.
- CARL G. STEARNS (1922)  
Second National Bank Building, Houston 2, Texas
- HENRY V. STEBBINS (1933)  
Sparkill, N. Y.
- RAYMOND E. STEFFERSON (1937)  
Scobeyville, N. J.
- WILLIAM T. STEVENS (1948)  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.

- ARCHIE M. STEVENSON (1941)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HARRY F. STILES, JR. (1944)  
Deutsch, Kerrigan & Stiles  
Hibernia Bank Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- JOHN S. STILLMAN (1948)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ROBERT STINSON (1931)  
Ober, Williams, Grimes & Stinson  
Baltimore Trust Building, Baltimore, Md.
- DANIEL L. STONEBRIDGE (1948)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ASHFIELD E. STOW (1946)  
American-Hawaiian Steamship Company  
215 Market Street, San Francisco 5, Cal.
- ADELBERT G. STRAUB, JR. (1944)  
Lyeth & Voorhees  
20 Exchange Place, New York 5, N. Y.
- WILLIAM S. STUHR, JR. (1945)  
68 Hudson Street, Hoboken, N. J.
- ARTHUR J. SULLIVAN (1941)  
Frank B. Hall & Co., Inc.  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- RICHARD L. SULLIVAN (1934)  
1028 Connecticut Avenue, N. W., Washington 6, D. C.
- LANE SUMMERS (1928)  
Merritt, Summers & Bucey  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- WILSON J. SWEENEY (1947)  
Room 2375, Admiralty Section  
Office of the Judge Advocate General  
Navy Department, Washington 25, D. C.
- REAR ADMIRAL MALCOLM D. SYLVESTER (1948)  
The Army & Navy Club  
17th & Eye Streets, N. W., Washington 6, D. C.
- WILLIAM G. SYMMERS (1938)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.

## T

- JOHN H. TAPPAN (1946)  
Pillans, Reams, Tappan & Wood  
Van Antwerp Building, Mobile 5, Ala.
- ARTHUR E. TARANTINO (1944)  
United States Maritime Commission  
Washington, D. C.
- MAX TAYLOR (1944)  
Room 1001, United States Court House  
Foley Square, New York 7, N. Y.
- HERBERT G. TELSEY (1946)  
55 Liberty Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- BARENT TEN EYCK (1948)  
Hatch, Wolfe, Nash & Ten Eyck  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- ARCHIBALD G. THACHER (1910)  
Barry, Wainwright, Thacher & Symmers  
72 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HARRY D. THIRKIELD (1920-1933; 1936)  
8 Bridge Street, New York 4, N. Y.
- NATHAN WEBB THOMPSON (1920)  
Woodman, Skelton, Thompson & Chapman  
85 Exchange Street, Portland 3, Me.
- SAWYER THOMPSON (1927)  
Thompson & Hunt  
2616 Woolworth Building  
233 Broadway, New York 7, N. Y.
- LAWRENCE R. THOMSEN (1943)  
Bigam, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- DELBERT M. TIBBETTS (1921)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN TICE (1935)  
Universal Insurance Company  
111 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- PATRICK F. TIERNAN (1945)  
111 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM J. TILLINGHAST, JR. (1942)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

- PAUL TISON (1927)  
 Pennsylvania Station  
 33rd Street & 7th Avenue, New York 1, N. Y.
- HOWARD LIONEL TOFT (1948)  
 First Avenue & Valley Drive, Atlantic Highlands, N. J.
- ARTHUR F. TRIPP, JR. (1948)  
 26 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.
- HELEN F. TUOHY (Miss) (1945)  
 Hunt, Hill & Betts  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- ELKAN TURK (1943)  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- ELKAN TURK, JR. (1948)  
 Herman Goldman  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- LLOYD M. TWEEDT (1946)  
 Derby, Sharp, Quinby & Tweedt  
 465 California Street, San Francisco, Cal.
- ALONZO L. TYLER (1928)  
 Insurance Company of North America  
 1600 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pa.

## U

- EUGENE UNDERWOOD (1923)  
 Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
 27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- JOHN A. URQUHART (1946)  
 Alexander & Alexander  
 Standard Oil Building  
 530 St. Paul Street, Baltimore 2, Md.

## V

- CARL VANDER CLUTE (1948)  
 8 Pembroke Court, Rockville Centre, N. Y.
- CHARLES A. VAN HAGEN, JR. (1945)  
 Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
 99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- WILLIAM A. VAN SICLEN (1944)  
 39-21 - 217th Street, Bayside, N. Y.

- GEORGE L. VARIAN (1938)  
Crowell & Rouse  
111 Broadway, New York 6, N. Y.
- L. K. VERMILLE (1946)  
Overton, Lyman, Plumb, Prince & Vermille  
Roosevelt Building, Los Angeles 14, Cal.
- WILLIAM R. VINCENT (1947)  
37 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- SHELDON A. VOGEL (1948)  
Bigham, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- W
- GEORGE R. WAGNER (1945)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- HAROLD B. WAHL (1945)  
Loftin & Wahl  
P. O. Box 1259, Jacksonville, Fla.
- CLAUDE E. WAKEFIELD (1943)  
Bogle, Bogle & Gates  
Central Building, Seattle 4, Wash.
- THOMAS H. WALKER (1945)  
United Fruit Co.  
Pier 9, North River, New York 6, N. Y.
- THOMAS H. WALSH (1940)  
50 State Street, Boston, Mass.
- GEORGE B. WARBURTON (1945)  
Hill, Rivkins & Middleton  
96 Fulton Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HAROLD WEISS (1944)  
175 Main Street, White Plains, N. Y.
- WALTER J. WELLS (1925)  
Browning, Wells & Co., Inc.  
116 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- HAROLD M. WESTON (1948)  
c/o Hotel Alden  
225 Central Park West, New York 24, N. Y.
- WILLIAM WEYMAR, JR. (1943)  
Atkins & Weymar  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.

- MICHAEL F. WHALEN (1936)  
Kirlin, Campbell, Hickox & Keating  
120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.
- THOMAS B. WHEELER (1947)  
McClendon & Wheeler  
Richards Building, New Orleans 12, La.
- GEORGE W. P. WHIP (1921)  
Lord & Whip  
823 Munsey Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- BURTON H. WHITE (1928)  
Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- MORRIS WHITE (1928)  
Fowler, White, Gillen, Yancey & Humkey  
Citizens Building, Tampa, Fla.
- WILLIAM H. WHITE, JR. (1937)  
Clark Hall, University, Charlottesville, Va.
- HARVEY WIENKE (1940)  
McBride & Baker  
120 South La Salle Street, Chicago 3, Ill.
- SYDNEY W. WILDE (1946)  
67 Wall Street, New York 5, N. Y.
- FREDERICK A. WILDNAUER (1944)  
National Bulk Carriers, Inc.  
630 Fifth Avenue, New York 20, N. Y.
- GRAY WILLIAMS (1944)  
Lloyd, Decker, Williams & Knauth  
60 East 42nd Street, New York 17, N. Y.
- ROBERT H. WILLIAMS, JR. (1947)  
Suite 909-10, Maryland Trust Building  
Calvert & Redwood Streets  
Baltimore 2, Md.
- ROBERT W. WILLIAMS (1921)  
Ober, Williams, Grimes & Stinson  
Baltimore Trust Building, Baltimore 2, Md.
- W. DALE WILLIAMS (1945)  
Pier 9, North River, New York, N. Y.
- C. WILLIAMSON (1946)  
Shipowners Claims Bureau, Inc.  
25 Broad Street, New York 4, N. Y.



JAMES HENRY WILLOCK (1932)  
 1308-1309 Congress Building  
 111 Northeast Second Avenue, Miami 32, Fla.

GRAFTON L. WILSON (1941)  
 Hale & Dorr  
 60 State Street, Boston 9, Mass.

LEO E. WOLF (1948)  
 Herman Goldman  
 120 Broadway, New York 5, N. Y.

OTTO WOLFF, JR. (1937)  
 Lewis, Wolff & Gourlay  
 1500 Lincoln-Liberty Building  
 Broad & Chestnut Streets, Philadelphia 7, Pa.

ERSKINE WOOD (1943)  
 Wood, Matthiessen & Wood  
 1310 Yeon Building, Portland 4, Ore.

ERSKINE B. WOOD (1948)  
 Wood, Matthiessen & Wood  
 1310 Yeon Building, Portland 4, Ore.

WILLIAM H. WOOLLEY (1924)  
 Bailey & Muller  
 70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.

JOHN WRIGHT (1944)  
 American Export Lines, Inc.  
 25 Broadway, New York 4, N. Y.

STANLEY R. WRIGHT (1927)  
 Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
 27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.

CHARLES E. WYTHE (1923)  
 Burlingham, Veeder, Clark & Hupper  
 27 William Street, New York 5, N. Y.

## Y

BENJAMIN W. YANCEY (1939)  
 Terriberry, Young, Rault & Carroll  
 Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.

HERVEY YANCEY (1948)  
 Fowler, White, Gillen, Yancey & Humkey  
 Citizens Building, Tampa 2, Fla.

- J. E. YONGE (1936)  
1122 DuPont Building, Miami, Fla.
- CLARENCE J. YOUNG (1946)  
Hampson, Koerner, Young & Swett  
800 Pacific Building, Portland 4, Ore.
- WILLIAM WALLER YOUNG (1919)  
Terriberry, Young, Rault & Carroll  
Whitney Building, New Orleans 12, La.

## Z

- CAPTAIN F. A. ZEUSLER, USCG (1945)  
3721 Cascadia Avenue, Seattle 44, Wash.
- JOHN W. R. ZISGEN (1931)  
Bigam, Englar, Jones & Houston  
99 John Street, New York 7, N. Y.
- FRANK J. ZITO (1935)  
Radner & Zito  
Tower Building, 14th & K Streets, Washington, D. C.
- ANTHONY N. ZOCK (1948)  
Dow & Symmers  
70 Pine Street, New York 5, N. Y.

**ACTIVE MEMBERS****Geographical List**

(For complete address and firm association see alphabetical list commencing at page 19)

## ALABAMA

*Mobile*

T. K. Jackson, Jr.  
 Alvin McConnell  
 Nicholas S. McGowin  
 Palmer Pillans  
 W. DeWitt Reams  
 John H. Tappan

## CALIFORNIA

*Long Beach*

Lt. Comdr. R. F. Schlegel, USN

*Los Angeles*

Harold F. Birnbaum  
 Reid R. Briggs  
 John C. McHose  
 William A. C. Roethke  
 L. K. Vermille

*San Francisco*

James L. Adams  
 William J. Ball  
 Lt. Charles A. Blocher, USN  
 H. E. Cabaud, Jr.  
 Allan E. Charles  
 Jay T. Cooper  
 Frederick W. Dorr  
 Keith R. Ferguson  
 Irving H. Frank  
 Joseph J. Geary  
 Chalmers G. Graham  
 Farnham P. Griffiths  
 Harry L. Haehl, Jr.  
 John Hays  
 Lyman Henry  
 Reginald S. Laughlin  
 Ira S. Lillick  
 Lt. Comdr. Edward G. Linsley, USNR  
 Lt. Carl E. Lundin, Jr., USNR  
 Joseph B. McKeon

Russell A. Mackey  
 Clarence G. Morse  
 Ashfield E. Stow  
 Lloyd M. Tweedt

## CONNECTICUT

*Hartford*

J. S. Gilbertson

*Old Greenwich*

Joseph F. Luley

## DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

*Washington*

Lt. Comdr. Frederick Karl Arzt, USCG  
 Myron H. Avery  
 Arthur M. Becker  
 John T. Casey  
 Lt. Comdr. William I. Connelly, USCG  
 James C. Coggill  
 Leavenworth Colby  
 John C. Donovan  
 John M. Drewry  
 Robert H. Duff  
 Ira L. Ewers  
 J. Franklin Fort  
 Bon Geaslin  
 Maj. Milton C. Grace  
 Hon. Robert Hale  
 Comdr. Edward B. Hayes, USNR  
 Lt. Comdr. Richard J. Hogan, USN  
 Ruth A. Kearney (Miss)  
 Lt. Comdr. Alfred R. Lyngby, USN  
 Thomas F. McGovern  
 Lt. Comdr. Guilbert W. Martin, USN  
 William Mellan  
 William Radner  
 Francis M. Shea  
 J. Frank Staley  
 Richard L. Sullivan  
 Wilson J. Sweeney  
 Rear Adm. Malcolm D. Sylvester  
 Arthur E. Tarantino  
 Frank J. Zito

## FLORIDA

*De Land*

L. A. Haslup

*Jacksonville*

Martin Henry Long

Reuben Ragland

Harold B. Wahl

*Miami*

Robert H. Anderson

David W. Dyer

Walter Humkey

Morris White

James H. Willock

J. E. Yonge

*Tampa*

Cody Fowler

William A. Gillen

R. W. Shackleford

T. M. Shackleford, Jr.

Hervey Yancey

## GEORGIA

*Savannah*

Alexander R. Lawton, Jr.

## ILLINOIS

*Chicago*

Stuart B. Bradley

Robert Branand, Jr.

Ralph H. Eisendrath

T. L. Osborn

Harvey Wienke

## LOUISIANA

*New Orleans*

Lt. Comdr. W. J. Bennett, USN

Walter Carroll

Henry H. Chaffe

Henry P. Dart, Jr.

Eberhard P. Deutsch

Louis C. Guidry

Selim Lemle

Andrew R. Martinez

Richard B. Montgomery, Jr.

James J. Morrison  
 Esmond Phelps  
 Gerard A. Rault  
 Joseph M. Rault  
 Lloyd A. Ray  
 Leon Sarpy  
 John W. Sims  
 Harry F. Stiles, Jr.  
 Thomas B. Wheeler  
 Benjamin W. Yancey  
 William W. Young

#### MAINE

##### *Portland*

Hon. Robert Hale  
 Richard K. Gould  
 Nathan W. Thompson

#### MARYLAND

##### *Baltimore*

Frederick W. Brune  
 Theodore R. Dankmeyer  
 Hon. Bernard J. Flynn  
 William A. Grimes  
 Stevenson Masson  
 L. Vernon Miller  
 Francis E. Pegram, Jr.  
 Charles E. Quandt  
 E. Ridgely Simpson  
 John H. Skeen  
 John H. Skeen, Jr.  
 Robert Stinson  
 John A. Urquhart  
 George W. P. Whip  
 Robert H. Williams, Jr.  
 Robert W. Williams

#### MASSACHUSETTS

##### *Boston*

Charles W. Bartlett  
 Charles S. Bolster  
 Eugene P. Carver, Jr.  
 Charles F. Dutch

Seymour P. Edgerton  
 Herbert S. Evans  
 H. Shippen Goodhue  
 Herbert L. Robinson  
 Arthur J. Santry  
 Fitz-Henry Smith, Jr.  
 Thomas H. Walsh  
 Grafton L. Wilson

*West Yarmouth*

Charles Hann, Jr.

MICHIGAN

*Detroit*

Carl V. Essery  
 Sparkman D. Foster  
 Sherwin A. Hill  
 Thomas L. Lott  
 Allan B. Lutz  
 Percy J. Power

MISSOURI

*St. Louis*

Milton I. Goldstein  
 Wilder Lucas

NEW JERSEY

*Atlantic Highlands*

Howard L. Toft

*Hoboken*

William S. Stuhr, Jr.

*Princeton*

Littleton Groom

*Scobeyville*

Raymond E. Stefferson

*Summit*

Joseph W. Carnwath

## NEW YORK

*Buffalo*

Thomas C. Burke

*Kingston*

H. H. Flemming

*New York*

F. W. H. Adams  
 John M. Aherne  
 Robert A. Aikman, Jr.  
 Hervey C. Allen, Jr.  
 Ray Rood Allen  
 Reese D. Alsop  
 Benjamin M. Altschuler  
 William F. Andersen  
 Donald D. Anderson  
 Robert J. Andrews  
 Samuel D. Antopol  
 Joseph Arcoleo  
 Robert E. Ard  
 Edward Ash  
 Irwin Asofsky  
 Horace T. Atkins  
 Bernard DeWitt Atwood  
 Bruno J. Augenti  
 Theodore L. Bailey  
 Allan A. Baillie  
 R. J. Baker  
 Benn Barber  
 Norman M. Barron  
 Gordon L. Becker  
 Henry I. Bernard  
 Geo. Whitefield Betts, Jr.  
 Frederick W. Bickmann, Jr.  
 Henry C. Blackiston, Jr.  
 Anthony Blasi  
 Arthur M. Boal  
 Henry J. Bogatko  
 James Bostwick  
 Sydney W. Bowser  
 Allan B. A. Bradley  
 Thomas L. Brady  
 George S. Brengle  
 Prentice W. Brower  
 James D. Brown  
 Ralph W. Brown  
 Joseph M. Brush  
 E. Myron Bull



Frank A. Bull  
John S. Bull  
Edmund C. Burke  
Morgan J. Burke, Jr.  
Charles D. Burkinshaw  
Charles Burlingham  
John J. Burns  
John T. Byrne  
Byron K. Callan  
Ira A. Campbell  
Joseph R. Cannata  
William H. Cantwell  
Joseph Cardillo, Jr.  
John Tilney Carpenter  
Mrs. Andree S. Carroll  
Anthony B. Cataldo  
Vincent A. Catoggio  
Roy W. Chamberlain  
Andre V. Cherbonnier  
Hawley T. Chester  
Albert F. Chrystal  
Victor S. Cichanowicz  
Chauncey I. Clark  
Lt. Comdr. Samuel R. Clarke, USNR  
Arthur W. Clement  
Alfred T. Cluff  
Paul L. Clugston  
John C. Coles  
William E. Collins  
Frederic Conger  
Walter X. Connor  
James J. Conran  
George A. Conroy  
David L. Corbin  
Frank P. Cox  
John W. Crandall  
H. Victor Crawford  
John C. Crawley  
Edward F. Cummerford  
Helen Clare Cunningham (Miss)  
Joseph M. Cunningham  
Ward R. Cunningham  
Leo J. Curren  
Matthew L. Danahar  
Walter A. Darby, Jr.  
William N. Davey  
Harold S. Deming  
MacDonald Deming  
Martin P. Detels

Henry W. Dieck  
C. John Dirosse  
James J. Donahue  
Robert M. Donohue  
James J. Donovan, Jr.  
Samuel R. Dorrance  
C. Frank Dougherty  
Thomas M. Dougherty  
Wilbur E. Dow, Jr.  
Edward R. Downing  
Oliver J. DuFour  
John Irwin Dugan  
John Dunaif  
Corydon B. Dunham  
Herbert F. Eggert  
Henry C. Eidenbach  
Eli Ellis  
Robert S. Erskine  
James M. Estabrook  
Irving L. Evans  
Howard F. Fanning  
Barton P. Ferris  
Morris Douw Ferris  
William J. Ferris  
Charles N. Fiddler  
Harold B. Finn  
Frederick Fish  
Littleton H. Fitch  
Gilbert S. Fleischer  
William J. Fleming  
Gerard J. Flynn  
Frank J. Foley  
John J. Foley  
Ezra G. Benedict Fox  
James E. Frechill  
Sanford H. E. Freund  
Frederick D. Gabel  
John L. Galey  
Kenneth Gardner  
John F. Gerity  
Frank H. Gerrodette  
Renato C. Giallorenzi  
Eugene F. Gilligan  
Thomas J. Goddard  
Herman Goldman  
Leo Rothstein Goldman  
F. Porter Gore  
Richard T. Graham  
Julian S. Gravely, Jr.

Louis E. Greco  
Stanley S. Green  
Louis J. Gusmano  
Charles J. Haas  
Leslie J. Haefner  
Charles W. Hagen  
Charles S. Haight  
Kenneth B. Halstead  
George J. Hammerman  
Leo F. Hanan  
Michael E. Hanrahan  
Adolph Hansen  
William Harison  
Charles W. Harvey  
William Bradford Harwood  
J. Francis Hayden  
Nicholas J. Healy, III  
Wilbur H. Hecht  
Christopher E. Heckman  
James S. Hemingway  
Henry M. Hewitt  
Walter P. Hickey  
Charles R. Hickox  
James J. Higgins  
Robert E. Hill  
Theodor Holm  
Arthur I. Hopkins  
Oscar R. Houston  
Walter T. Hughes, Jr.  
Perry A. Hull  
Peter F. Hunt  
John Robert Hunter  
Roscoe H. Hupper  
Daniel Huttenbrauck  
Joseph K. Inness  
George Inselman  
Thomas J. Irving  
Sidney R. Jackson  
Paul R. Jansen  
Alfred P. Jobson  
Nelson J. Johnson  
Paul M. Jones  
Vernon S. Jones  
Edward J. Keane  
Joseph G. Kearns  
Cletus Keating  
Joseph C. Kenney  
Henry Klahre  
Arnold W. Knauth

Ellis Knowles  
 John W. Knox  
 P. J. Kooiman  
 David A. Kraemer  
 Edgar R. Kraetzer  
 Everett W. Kramer  
 Carl P. Kremer  
 Lt. George P. Kurtz, USN  
 Paul H. Lacques  
 William Potter Lage  
 Edmund F. Lamb  
 Nicholas D. Lamorte  
 William H. Lane  
 Richard S. Leahy  
 Vernon T. Lee  
 Richard F. Lenahan  
 Harry G. Liese  
 Robert A. Lilly  
 Samuel Lloyd  
 William Logan, Jr.  
 Edwin Longcope  
 Henry N. Longley  
 George deForest Lord  
 Herbert M. Lord  
 Arthur O. Louis  
 J. M. Richardson Lyeth  
 Anthony V. Lynch, Jr.  
 John A. Lyon  
 Gerard M. McAllister  
 Parker McCollester  
 Frank J. McConnell  
 Eugene P. McCue  
 Andrew J. McElhinney  
 Ruth M. McElveney  
 P. J. R. McEntegart  
 Archibald F. McGrath  
 Lawrence W. McKeown  
 Gerald J. McKernan  
 John F. X. McKiernan  
 James McKown, Jr.  
 John A. McManus  
 Mark W. Maclay  
 James B. Magnor  
 Edward H. Mahla  
 William V. Mahon  
 Walter E. Maloney  
 Frank C. Mason  
 Leonard J. Matteson  
 Paul C. Matthews

Joseph Mayper  
Joseph M. Meehan  
G. Hunter Merritt  
Thomas P. Mesick  
Rolf T. Michelsen  
Thomas H. Middleton  
Charles E. Miller  
Charles R. Millett  
Henry P. Molloy  
John C. Monroe  
Leighton K. Montgomery  
John C. Moore  
Joshua Morrison  
Russell T. Mount  
Frederick W. Mueller  
Arthur E. Muller  
Denis Mulligan  
Edwin S. Murphy  
E. W. Murray  
J. Newton Nash  
Robert P. Nash  
A. Howard Neely  
Edward A. Neiley  
J. P. Nelson  
O. Taft Nelson  
Francis X. Nestor  
John W. Neville  
Henry W. Nichols  
Louis W. Niggeman  
Gerhard M. Nilssen  
Richard M. Noack  
J. Joseph Noble  
Martin J. Norris  
Joseph M. Nugent  
Edward L. P. O'Connor  
Alfred Ogden  
Adrian J. O'Kane  
Margaret D. O'Keefe (Miss)  
J. Ward O'Neill  
John Osnato, Jr.  
Lt. Comdr. Herbert E. Ost  
Henry E. Otto  
Samuel C. Otto  
Courtland Palmer  
Raymond Parmer  
J. Lester Parsons, Jr.  
Christy George Peters  
Sherman V. Petrie, Jr.  
Michael Piznak

Edward F. Platow  
George G. Platow  
Albert V. Plotner  
Wharton Poor  
L. DeGrove Potter  
Eugene Powdermaker  
F. Herbert Prem  
John C. Prizer  
Warner Pyne  
John F. Quarto  
Edward A. Quinlan  
John L. Quinlan  
Norman Randell  
Anthony J. Randolph  
C. Sherwood Reddish  
Henry E. Reed  
Henry H. Reed  
Edwin K. Reid  
Herbert P. Reid  
James W. Reid  
Eugene Rheinfrank  
Albert E. Rice  
Karl Riemer  
Clement C. Rinehart  
Gregory S. Rivkins  
James R. Roberts  
Elizabeth Robinson (Miss)  
Thomas K. Roche  
Max Rockmore  
Bernard Rolnick  
Julius J. Rosenberg  
E. Curtis Rouse  
Eugene F. Russell, Jr.  
James W. Ryan  
Margaret M. Ryan (Miss)  
John J. Santry  
Horace W. Schmahl  
Sidney A. Schwartz  
David E. Scoll  
W. Parker Sedgwick  
James Neil Senecal  
Donald N. Serrell  
Richard F. Shaw  
John R. Sheneman  
Malcolm A. Shipley  
Roger B. Siddall  
Forrest E. Single  
Dudley C. Smith  
Edward L. Smith

John F. Sonnett  
Paul Speer  
Stuart Sprague  
William L. Standard  
William T. Stevens  
Archie M. Stevenson  
John S. Stillman  
Daniel L. Stonebridge  
Adelbert G. Straub, Jr.  
Arthur J. Sullivan  
William G. Symmers  
Max Taylor  
Herbert G. Telsey  
Barent Ten Eyck  
Archibald G. Thacher  
Harry D. Thirkield  
Sawyer Thompson  
Lawrence R. Thomsen  
Delbert M. Tibbetts  
John Tice  
Patrick F. Tiernan  
William J. Tillinghast, Jr.  
Paul Tison  
Arthur F. Tripp, Jr.  
Helen F. Tuohy (Miss)  
Elkan Turk  
Elkan Turk, Jr.  
Eugene Underwood  
Charles A. Van Hagen, Jr.  
William A. Van Sicle  
George L. Varian  
William R. Vincent  
Sheldon A. Vogel  
George R. Wagner  
Thomas H. Walker  
George B. Warburton  
Walter J. Wells  
Harold M. Weston  
William Weymar, Jr.  
Michael F. Whalen  
Burton H. White  
Sidney W. Wilde  
Frederick A. Wildnauer  
Gray Williams  
W. Dale Williams  
C. Williamson  
Leo E. Wolf  
William H. Woolley  
John Wright

Stanley R. Wright  
 Charles E. Wythe  
 John W. R. Zisgen  
 Anthony N. Zock

*New Rochelle*

Charles G. Bergin

*Rockville Centre*

Carl Vander Clute

*Scarsdale*

John H. Galloway, Jr.

*West Nyack*

Edward C. Kalaidjian

*White Plains*

Harold Weiss

OHIO

*Cincinnati*

William J. Herbert  
 Harry M. Mack  
 George J. Shaw

*Cleveland*

Robert G. McCreary  
 McAlister Marshall  
 Lucien Y. Ray

OREGON

*Portland*

Gunther F. Krause  
 Erskine Wood  
 Erskine B. Wood  
 Clarence J. Young

PENNSYLVANIA

*Philadelphia*

George E. Beechwood  
 James S. Benn, Jr.  
 Robert W. Bikle  
 George M. Brodhead  
 Everett H. Brown, Jr.  
 Thomas E. Byrne, Jr.  
 C. Gordon Campbell  
 William J. Conlen  
 H. Alan Dawson



James B. Doak  
 Rowland C. Evans, Jr.  
 Samuel B. Fortenbaugh, Jr.  
 Joseph W. Henderson  
 Robert G. Kelly  
 Peter J. Korsan  
 Leslie C. Krusen  
 J. Harry LaBrun  
 Howard M. Long  
 Howard T. Long  
 Gilbert Mather  
 James H. Molloy  
 Springer H. Moore, Jr.  
 Thomas F. Mount  
 Walter C. Neely  
 David P. Pugh  
 A. Addison Roberts  
 John B. Shaw  
 Alonzo L. Tyler  
 Otto Wolff, Jr.

## SOUTH CAROLINA

*Charleston*

B. Allston Moore  
 Harold A. Mouzon  
 Lt. Comdr. Charles B. Kelly, USN

## TEXAS

*Beaumont*

George W. Brown, Jr.

*Houston*

John R. Brown  
 Sweeney J. Doehring  
 Clarence S. Eastham  
 Robert Eikel  
 Leroy D. Moody  
 D. A. Simmons  
 Carl G. Stearns

## VERMONT

*Poultney*

George C. Sprague

## VIRGINIA

*Charlottesville*

William H. White, Jr.

*Norfolk*

Edward R. Baird  
 Barron F. Black  
 William C. Coupland  
 R. Arthur Jett  
 Thomas M. Johnston  
 George M. Lanning  
 Lt. John A. Montgomery, Jr., USN  
 John W. Oast, Jr.  
 Lester S. Parsons  
 Leon T. Seawell  
 Leon T. Seawell, Jr.

*Point Pleasant*

J. G. F. Johnson

*Vienna*

Bertram G. Eadie

## WASHINGTON

*Seattle*

John Ambler  
 William T. Becks  
 Lt. Comdr. Howard Bergman, USN  
 Lawrence Bogle  
 Gerald H. Bucey  
 Edward G. Dobrin  
 Capt. Raymond F. Farwell, USNR  
 Edwin J. Friedman  
 Charles B. Howard  
 Harry B. Jones, Jr.  
 Sam L. Levinson  
 Stanley B. Long  
 Thomas L. Morrow  
 George T. Nickell  
 F. W. Perry  
 Lane Summers  
 Claude E. Wakefield  
 Capt. F. A. Zeusler, USCG

## FOREIGN

## FRANCE

*Paris*

J. Theodore Rickard